
 
 
City of Lone Tree Planning Commission Agenda 
Tuesday, October 14, 2014 

 
Meeting Location:  City Council Meeting Room, Lone Tree Civic Center, 8527 Lone Tree Parkway 
Meeting Procedure: The Lone Tree Planning Commission and staff will meet in a public Study Session at 6:00 p.m. in 

the lower level of the Civic Center.  The Regular Meeting will be convened at 6:30 p.m. in the City 
Council meeting room. Contact Kelly First, Kelly.first@cityoflonetree.com if special arrangements 
are needed to attend (at least 24 hours in advance). Comments from the public are welcome during 
the Public Comment portion of the meeting (brief comments on items not appearing on the regular 
meeting agenda). Those persons requesting to comment on an agenda item will be called upon by 
the Chair. If you have any questions please contact Kelly First, Community Development Director, 
at Kelly.first@cityoflonetree.com, or 303-708-1818. 

 
6:00 p.m. Study Session Agenda 

 
1. Administrative Matters 

 
 

6:30 p.m. Regular Meeting Agenda 
 

1. Opening of Meeting / Roll Call 
 

2. Conflict of Interest Inquiry 
 

3. Public Comment  
 

4. Minutes of the September 9, 2014 Planning Commission meeting. 
 

5. RidgeGate Section 15, Filing 21, Lot 1 (Morningstar at RidgeGate) Site Improvement 
Plan, Project File #SP14-30R (The property is located at the northeast corner of 
RidgeGate Parkway and Commons Street in RidgeGate.) 
 

6. Amendments to the City of Lone Tree Zoning Code related to references to the Board of 
Adjustment and Board of Appeals.  Public Hearing Item, Project # MI14-64. 
 

7. Adjournment 
 

 

10/14/14 Planning Commission Meeting Packet Page 1 of 84

mailto:Kelly.first@cityoflonetree.com
mailto:Kelly.first@cityoflonetree.com


MINUTES OF THE 
Lone Tree Planning Commission Meeting 

September 9, 2014 
 

Lone Tree Civic Center 
 

1. Attendance 
 

In attendance were: 
 
Martha Sippel, Chair  
Dave Kirchner, Vice-Chair 
Rhonda Carlson, Planning Commissioner 
Gary Godden, Planning Commissioner 
Roy Kline, Planning Commissioner 
Stephen Mikolajczak, Planning Commissioner 
Herb Steele, Planning Commissioner 
 
Also in attendance from City staff were: 
Kelly First, Community Development Director 
Jennifer Drybread, Senior Planner 
 
 

2. Regular Meeting Call to Order 
 
The meeting was called to order at 6:30 pm with a quorum. 

 
 

3. Conflict of Interest 
 
There were no conflicts of interest stated. 
 
 

4. Minutes of the July 22, 2014 Planning Commission Meeting 
 

Commissioner Kline moved, and Commissioner Godden seconded, to approve 
the minutes. The motion passed unanimously.  Commissioner Carlson abstained 
as she was absent at the July 22nd meeting. 

 
 

5. Heritage Hills Filing 2, 3rd Amendment, Lot 9-A (Kaiser Permanente South 
Multi-Specialty Care Center) Site Improvement Plan, Project File #SP13-38, 
third amendment to Douglas County SIP#2011-037      
 

  

1 
 
10/14/14 Planning Commission Meeting Packet Page 2 of 84



Ms. Kelly First provided a brief introduction of the project that proposes to add a 
third building and parking structure, rooftop solar on the garages, and plans for 
optional building materials for the future buildings at the Kaiser Permanente 
campus.  Ms. First stated that staff finds the application in compliance with City 
regulations and zoning and recommends approval, subject to final approval by 
the Public Works Department.   
 
Ms. First responded to a question by Commissioner Godden, that the Site 
Improvement Plan would also serve as a Site Specific Development Plan for the 
purpose of vesting, and would vest the property for a period of ten years.  
Vesting would lock in existing zoning requirements, but she added that the 
applicant would still be required to comply with future changes in the City’s 
building code.   
 
Mr. Mike Shultz, Project Manager for Kaiser Permanente, made some brief 
opening remarks about the Kaiser Permanente proposal, and introduced the 
project architect, Jeff Stoecklein, from Davis Partnership Architects.   
 
Mr. Stoecklein stated that Kaiser Permanente has always anticipated a third 
building that will complement the existing building on the campus.  Their design 
objectives include a walkable and sustainable development with outdoor spaces 
that offers various experiences and provides a connection to nature.  The 
addition of a second parking garage will reduce surface parking and enhance the 
outdoor experience with the addition of open space.  They have coordinated with 
Celebrity Homes (the residential development to the west), to minimize impacts 
through enhanced landscaping on the west side of their building.   
 
Mr. Stoecklein talked more about the location of surface parking near the entry to 
accommodate visitors that may be ill, and mentioned that the entrances to the 
parking garages were sited to provide good traffic/pedestrian circulation.  He 
elaborated on some of the building materials including the sun shades and 
mechanical systems that will create a more sustainable building.   
 
Mr. Stoecklein discussed options for building materials for future buildings that, if 
used, will maintain a cohesive look at the campus.  Optional materials that could 
be used in the future, should such be needed due to a lack of material supplies 
or high material costs, include the use of orange and grey brick to replace the 
terra cotta and granite materials used today. The parking structures will have the 
same look, but will integrate the use of “green screens” (the addition of climbing 
vines) along portions of the parking garage.  He showed proposed landscaped 
areas that will be created by the new buildings, including a courtyard with seating 
for use by patients, staff and visitors. 
 
Commissioner Godden asked for a clarification on the fence to be constructed 
“by others.”  Ms. First stated that this is an existing fence on the Celebrity Homes 
(Heritage Hills) side and showed a photograph of that brick fencing.  
Commissioner Godden asked for information on the detention and drainage of 

2 
 
10/14/14 Planning Commission Meeting Packet Page 3 of 84



the site.  Mr. Stoecklein stated that there is above ground detention at the 
southeast corner of the site goes through outlets under Park Meadows Drive.  
The drainage for the majority of the site will use underground drainage pipes that 
connect to the west through Heritage Hills.  Commissioner Godden 
recommended better illustrations for the City Council packet, including what can 
be seen by the pedestrian from Heritage Hills and from Park Meadows Drive, and 
illustrations of what the site looks like at buildout. 
 
Commissioner Carlson asked what electrical needs the solar panels mounted on 
the garages will serve.  Mr. Schultz responded that they have not done that 
analysis, but it is possible that it will generate enough electricity for parking 
garage lighting and exterior lighting.  Commissioner Carlson asked whether they 
were pursuing LEED certification.  Mr. Schultz answered that they were pursuing 
Gold certification, and that LEED Silver was achieved for Building One.   
 
Commissioner Kirchner complimented the design of the existing building, stating 
that the architecture is distinctive.  He likes the addition of solar.  He also felt that 
the use of grey brick as an option was less appealing than the existing building 
materials, and felt it important to maintain the orange color.  He added that he 
likes the use of glass and bringing a feeling of “the outside in” to the buildings.   
 
Commissioner Kline asked about the parking ratios and whether the 5 spaces 
per thousand square feet creates too massive of parking structures, particularly 
with their neighbors who may experience a shadowing effect.  Mr. Stoecklein 
responded that the parking ratios were consistent with the other buildings and 
that one parking level will be below grade, which will help minimize the parking 
impact.  
 
Commissioner Kline asked whether the garage rooftop parapet screening will 
screen parking.  Mr. Stoecklein responded that the parapet will screen parking, 
but not the solar panels.  Commissioner Kline asked if there would be a granite 
component.  Mr. Stoecklein responded that yes, but they would like the flexibility 
of using brick to match.  Commissioner Kline expressed concern with the use of 
orange brick, and stated he preferred the terra cotta materials.  He added that he 
likes the use of the green screens and the solar.  He expressed concern with 
traffic impacts at the intersection of Park Meadows Drive and Lincoln Avenue, 
projected to be at an “F” service level.   
 

 Commissioner Mikolajczak stated that he was hoping to see better graphics and 
samples of the building materials, and recommended that the applicant provide 
such to City Council.  He expressed strong support for the existing building, 
finding it open and inviting, with a contemporary look.  He felt the addition of the 
two new buildings will help to engage the street, and he likes the uses of glass 
curtain walls and sunshades.  He expressed concern for the possible use of 
orange brick trying to look like terra cotta and some concern for the grey brick.  
He recommends keeping the terra cotta. 

 

3 
 
10/14/14 Planning Commission Meeting Packet Page 4 of 84



Commissioner Mikolajczak asked if the solar panels will be angled.  Mr. 
Stoecklein responded that they will be and will cover the majority of the garage 
roofs, with the exception where the ramps are to be located.  Commissioner 
Mikolajczak stated that he likes the overall design, including the green wall, the 
care taken to make the site nice for the adjoining residences, and the open 
spaces.   
 
Commissioner Steele stated he found Building One extremely attractive and 
distinguishable.  He asked whether the campus will have a regional draw.  Mr. 
Schultz responded that it would likely draw from the south Metro area, and for 
specialty services, from Castle Rock, Parker, Highlands Ranch, Littleton and 
Lakewood.  Commissioner Steele inquired about their hours of operation.  Mr. 
Schultz stated 8:00 am to 5:00 pm for the most part, with imaging services up to 
seven days a week.  Some services may operate seven days a week.   
 
Commissioner Steele asked when most staffing would arrive, and whether they 
will likely use light rail.  Mr. Schultz stated that many staff would arrive early and 
leave late and had no estimates or incentives in place for staff to use light rail.  
Commissioner Steele stated his overall concern relates to density of building in 
the area at buildout, and the concern for traffic and pedestrian conflicts trying to 
cross Park Meadows Drive to access light rail.  He expressed concern with the 
amount of signalization that will occur along this corridor, causing a lot of stop 
and go movements.  He asked whether Kaiser Permanente owns property east 
of Park Meadows Drive, and Mr. Schultz responded that Kaiser Permanente 
owns five acres.  Commissioner Steele expressed concern for integrating cars 
and pedestrian activity between the buildings across Park Meadows Drive. 
 
Commissioner Steele asked about building signage, and expressed support for 
clearly labeling buildings and installing signage to direct visitors and patients to 
the campus.  Mr. Schultz responded that they will address and mitigate that issue 
to ensure visitors can navigate their way through the campus.   
 
Commissioner Sippel shared her concern regarding traffic volumes at peak travel 
periods, and concern for added traffic from the additional apartments under 
construction in the area.  She said that she likes the building design and 
expressed a preference for rusty, terra cotta color, instead of what she described 
as a salmon color.  In the drawings, she prefers the use of grey brick over the 
current salmon-orange color brick.  She expressed strong concern with providing 
flexibility in color and materials and not having a material sample board with 
which the Planning Commission can view the optional materials. 
 
Commissioner Sippel asked about the weeds on the southwest side of the site, 
and the fact that trees in this area were planted too close together.  Mr. 
Stoecklein responded that the plans always show symbols of landscaping at their 
mature size to account for spacing, but that they did install more dense plantings 
on the west side for screening purposes, at the request of Celebrity Homes.  Mr. 

4 
 
10/14/14 Planning Commission Meeting Packet Page 5 of 84



Stoecklein added that many trees along the west side are dwarf species that may 
get only 12 feet in diameter. 
 
Commissioner Sippel recommended the graphics be better labeled, particularly 
the photos and cross sections.  She asked whether the screen wall graphic was 
taken from photos from Colorado.  Mr. Stoecklein responded that they can get 
photos from Colorado. 
 
There was discussion by the Planning Commission members and general 
agreement expressed for requiring Kaiser Permanente to bring the final material 
boards and colors back to the Planning Commission in the future for approval by 
the Commission. 
 
Commissioner Mikolajczak motioned to recommend approval of #SP13-38 with 
the following two conditions: 
 
1. Final approval of the SIP is subject to approval by the City Public Works 

Department; and 
2. Prior to issuance of building permits for Buildings Two and Three and each 

parking structure, the applicant shall submit specific building color and 
materials samples for review and approval by the Planning Commission.  

 
The motion passed by a 6-1 vote. The dissenting vote by Commissioner Kirchner 
was in opposition to the second condition; not to the project. He felt that the 
condition defeated the purpose of the applicant’s request for some degree of 
flexibility in making final material and color selections at the time of construction 
through a simplified, administrative process.  
 
 

6. Discussion on Concepts and Land Uses for the Outdoor Public Spaces at 
the Lone Tree Arts Center/Lone Tree Library 

 
Ms. Jennifer Drybread presented graphics showing planned outdoor public 
spaces at the site of the future Lone Tree Library and the existing Lone Tree Arts 
Center, with the objective of having a general discussion regarding the Planning 
Commission’s initial ideas and interests for uses at those sites.  It was made 
clear that this was not intended as a promise or agreement by the City about any 
of the ideas, but only as a preliminary brainstorming session.   
 
Ms. Drybread listed a number of ideas that had come from a previous meeting on 
this subject with the City’s consulting urban designer, Dick Farley, including 
blocking off portions of Commons Street for street fairs, the addition of benches, 
landscaping, water features, places for public art, space for gourmet food trucks, 
space for music and entertainment, tables and areas for games, fire pit, ice 
skating, with activities planned for year-round use.  The Planning Commission 
suggested: 
 

5 
 
10/14/14 Planning Commission Meeting Packet Page 6 of 84



• Relocating art from the existing Lone Tree Library 
• A gazebo for weddings and other events 
• Tensile or other shade structures for immediate shade 
• The importance of having a focal point by the Arts Center since the east 

drive is to be relocated to the north to align with the future Arts Center 
Drive. 

• Using the amenities proposed for the Arts Center that were included in a 
presentation by RidgeGate at a previous RidgeGate community meeting. 

 
Some Planning Commission members expressed support for some of the ideas 
presented by staff including a space for outdoor weddings, water fountain, ice 
skating, benches, water features, sculptures, and a coffee kiosk. 
 
The Planning Commission was invited to attend a presentation by the Library at 
the next City Council meeting on September 16th.   

 
 
7. Public Comment 
 

There was no public comment. 
 
 

8. Adjournment  
 

There being no further business, Chair Sippel adjourned the meeting at 8:25 p.m.  
 
These minutes have been reviewed and confirmed by  
 
_________________________  (name), on __________________(date) 

6 
 
10/14/14 Planning Commission Meeting Packet Page 7 of 84



 
STAFF REPORT 

 
TO:  City of Lone Tree Planning Commission 
 
FROM: Kelly First, Community Development Director 
  Jennifer Drybread, Senior Planner 
 
DATE: October 8, 2014 
 
FOR:  October 14, 2014 Planning Commission Meeting 
 
SUBJECT: RidgeGate Section 15, Filing 21, Lot 1 (Morningstar at RidgeGate) 
 Site Improvement Plan, Project File #SP14-30R 
  
 
Owner:      Representative: 
Lincoln Commons South, Inc.   Haselden Construction 
10270 Commonwealth St., Suite B.  8000 S. Lincoln St., Suite 206 
Lone Tree, CO  80124    Littleton, CO  80122     
 
 
Planning Commission Meeting Date:   October 14, 2014    
City Council Meeting Date:      November 18, 2014  
  
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
 

A. REQUEST: 
 

Approval of a Site Improvement Plan (SIP) for a 224-unit senior living 
facility on 4.824 acres.      
 
 

B. LOCATION: 
 
The property is located in RidgeGate in the area known as Lincoln 
Commons South. The property is located between RidgeGate Parkway to 
the south and Arts Center Drive (now under construction) to the north.  
The adjacent land uses are as follows: 
 
East:    Future townhomes (New Town Builders) 
West:   Lone Tree Arts Center 
 

10/14/14 Planning Commission Meeting Packet Page 8 of 84



Morningstar at RidgeGate 
Site Improvement Plan 
Project File #SP14-30R 

 
North: Undeveloped land (planned for the future Lone Tree Library and 

other commercial mixed-use development north of Arts Center 
Drive) 

South:   RidgeGate Parkway, residential uses 
 

 
C. SITE CHARACTERISTICS: 

 
The property had been overlot graded.  There is no vegetation remaining 
on site.  The property gently slopes down from south to north with 
approximately 10 feet of grade change.   
 
 

D. SERVICE PROVIDERS:   
 
Water:   Southgate Water District 
Sanitation:  Southgate Sanitation District 
Police:  Lone Tree Police 
Fire:   South Metro Fire Rescue Authority 
Special Districts: Rampart Range Metropolitan District 

 
 

E. BACKGROUND: 
 

The property was originally planned in 2008 as part of a mixed-use retail 
area.  Since then, for a variety of reasons, the master developer for 
RidgeGate has said that the retail concept in this area is not feasible. 
Instead, the new plan includes a senior living facility proposed with this 
application, recently approved townhomes, and a new public library 
expected to be heard by the Planning Commission this fall. In April of this 
year, an amended Sub-Area Plan for Lincoln Commons was approved, 
laying the groundwork for the revised development plan.   
 

 
F. DESCRIPTION: 

 
Zoning.  The proposed senior living facility is permitted by zoning. The 
property is zoned PD and is within a Commercial-Mixed Use (C/MU) 
Planning Area in the RidgeGate Planned Development. The zoning allows 
residential as a permitted use.  
 
Access.  The property is proposed to be accessed via Commons Street, 
as well as Arts Center Drive and Belvedere Lane (both streets now under 
construction).   The west driveway accesses the main entrance to the 
building; the north driveway accesses parking (surface and underground); 
and the east driveway accesses the memory care units. 

2 
 
10/14/14 Planning Commission Meeting Packet Page 9 of 84



Morningstar at RidgeGate 
Site Improvement Plan 
Project File #SP14-30R 

 
Parking.  Staff finds the proposed amount of parking is adequate to meet 
the needs of the facility, based on staff research and documentation from 
the applicant.  
 
The parking proposed is provided both in surface and underground 
parking.  The exterior parking is located on three small surface lots and in 
underground parking, thereby minimizing the visual impact of parking 
fields.  Environmental impacts are also minimized in this way through the 
reduction in the heat-island effect (heat gain and re-radiation of heat of 
large pavement areas). 
 
The parking section of the City’s Zoning Code lists a parking standard for 
nursing homes based on .5 parking spaces per bed.  However, it does not 
specifically address parking for this type of facility that provides a 
continuum of care (a mix of independent living, assisted living and 
memory care).   
 
Staff has consulted the Parking Generation manual, 3rd Edition, published 
by the Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE).  Of similar facilities 
surveyed by ITE, parking of .5 spaces per unit on were provided on 
average for independent, assisted living and skilled nursing facilities.   
 
Morningstar at RidgeGate is proposing a total of 224 units. At .5 spaces 
per unit, 112 parking spaces would be required.  The developer is 
proposing 156 on-site parking spaces. This calculates to .70 spaces per 
unit.   
 
Staff asked the Morningstar representative to address parking needs in a 
separate letter (see attached).  Morningstar calculates parking demand 
based on their experience at their other facilities and based on the 
resident level of care (for example, Morningstar concludes that few 
assisted living residents and no memory care residents drive).  Also taking 
also into account parking demand for these residents, plus independent 
living residents, visitors and staff parking needs, they conclude that there 
will be more than adequate parking to meet the demand. 
 
Building Design.   Staff finds that the proposed building design is 
consistent with the City’s Design Guidelines and applicable Sub-Area 
Plan.   
 
The architectural context of the overall area will consist of a mix of both 
traditional and contemporary styles, complementing each other through  
careful transitions in massing and the use of quality materials and earth 
toned colors.  
 
 

3 
 
10/14/14 Planning Commission Meeting Packet Page 10 of 84



Morningstar at RidgeGate 
Site Improvement Plan 
Project File #SP14-30R 

 
Considerable effort has been made to transition the building mass and 
scale with the nearby residential units and the Lone Tree Arts Center.  
This has been accomplished by limiting building heights to a maximum of 
three stories in these areas.  The building transitions up to a height of five 
stories on middle portion of the north and west sides of the building.  
However, these taller areas are generally stepped back from the street to 
help reduce building mass and relate with adjacent development. 
Additionally, the floor level of the building along RidgeGate Parkway is 
lower than the road, again, minimizing building’s visual impact from the 
road and for residents living in the Lincoln Park townhomes to the south. 
The building heights are compliant with zoning. 
 
Vertical elements, such as brick and stucco features, window orientation 
and architectural embellishments are also added to help break up the 
generally horizontal building form.  
 
As this building is visible on all four sides by public streets, “360 degree” 
architectural treatment has been applied to this building design, with 
building materials and colors wrapping the building. 
 
Considerable attention has been given to the northwest corner of the 
building where an outdoor patio and seating area has been added to help 
activate this area adjacent to the City’s Art Center and future Library. 
 
Building colors are generally earth toned, with orange, yellow and red 
colors limited to building accents, in keeping with the City’s Design 
Guidelines.  Building materials include stucco and brick veneer that are 
durable and provide architectural variety.   
 
All service areas, trash receptacles, and generators are screened from 
public view.  All rooftop mechanical is screened from public view. 
 
Landscaping.  The proposed landscape and irrigation plans are 
compliant with the City’s requirements and that of the applicable Sub-Area 
Plan. Landscaping proposed is adapted to this climate, and is generally 
low-water intensive.   
 
Retaining and screen walls are located along the south, southwest, 
northeast and northwest corners of the property.  No wall is taller than 5 
feet.  Walls at the northwest corner are tiered to reduce the visual impact.  
Retaining walls along RidgeGate Parkway are planned downslope from 
the street, minimizing visual impact.  Landscaping has also been added in 
areas to help soften the visual impact of the walls.   
 
 
 

4 
 
10/14/14 Planning Commission Meeting Packet Page 11 of 84



Morningstar at RidgeGate 
Site Improvement Plan 
Project File #SP14-30R 

 
Lighting.  Street lights and pedestrian lights are compliant with the 
RidgeGate standard. Security lighting is fully cut-off to minimize light 
pollution.   
 
Snow Storage. Snow storage areas are designed in various portions of 
the surface parking lots throughout the site, and noted on the SIP. 
 
Local Park Dedication.  The requirement for local park dedication is 
calculated based on provisions of the approved Sub-Area Plan. Staff 
recommends that credit be given toward the park requirements, based on 
the large central courtyard, fitness center, pool and spa, art room, 
game/card room, and theater.  Consistent with the Sub-Area Plan 
provisions related to consideration of credits, the recommended cash-in-
lieu fee is $19,200.  Payment will be required to the City prior to issuance 
of a building permit, as recommended through a condition of approval.   
  

G. REFERRALS:  The following community meetings were held by Coventry 
Development Corporation on the application: 

 
• September 9, 2013 – meeting with 7-8 residents living closest to the 

Morningstar site to get initial feedback 
• October 8, 2013 – meeting with Living and Aging Well in Lone 

Tree.  Approximately 30 people in attendance 
• October 8, 2013 – first community evening meeting with RidgeGate 

residents to present project and Lincoln Commons South Area 
development.  Approximately 110 people in attendance 

• December 11, 2013 – second community evening meeting with 
RidgeGate residents regarding Morningstar project.  Approximately 60 
people in attendance 

• May 6, 2014 – third community evening meeting to provide project 
update.  Approximately 40 people in attendance 

• June 10, 2014 – second meeting with Living and Aging Well group 
regarding project.  Approximately 30 people in attendance. 

 
All Homeowner Associations in the City were sent a referral and no 
responses were received.  Although not a requirement of the SIP process, 
staff also mailed notifications to each of the adjoining residents in the 
Lincoln Park neighborhood, containing general project information, staff 
contact information, and the date and time of the public meetings. 
 
The RidgeGate Design Review Committee has reviewed and approved 
the design plans (meeting notes are included in the packet). 
 
 
 

5 
 
10/14/14 Planning Commission Meeting Packet Page 12 of 84



Morningstar at RidgeGate 
Site Improvement Plan 
Project File #SP14-30R 

 
South Metro Fire Rescue Authority responded with a number of technical 
issues that are being addressed by the applicant. Sign off on the building 
permit by South Metro will be required prior to permit issuance.  

 
The applicant will address Public Works Department referral comments 
(who conclude with no overall objection to the proposal) prior to final 
approval of the SIP (a condition of SIP approval).   
 

 
H. STAFF FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATION: 

 
Staff finds that the application is in conformance with the SIP requirements 
of the Lone Tree Zoning Code, the Subdivision Code, the Comprehensive 
Plan, and the RidgeGate Lincoln Commons Commercial Mixed-Use Sub-
Area Plan.   
 
Staff notes that the Comprehensive Plan supports senior friendly housing 
development, including “assisted living facilities, [located] near social 
services, public facilities, and commercial areas to reduce feelings of 
isolation and to ensure access to employment, education, and other 
activities.” 
 
Staff recommends the Planning Commission recommend approval of the 
SIP to City Council, subject to: 
 
1. Final approval by the Public Works Department 
2. The local park dedication for the property will be paid to the City by the 

applicant, prior to issuance of a building permit 
 
 
END 

6 
 
10/14/14 Planning Commission Meeting Packet Page 13 of 84



10/14/14 Planning Commission Meeting Packet Page 14 of 84



 

 
 

 
 

 

                                                                      Lantz     Boggio Architects, P.C. 
  
                                                     5650 DTC Parkway, Suite 200 
 Englewood, CO 80111 
 (303) 773-0436 
 (303) 773-8709 Fax 

 
September 10, 2014 
 
 

MorningStar at RidgeGate – Project Narrative (Section 16-27-60) 
 
Project Team: 
 

Owner:   
Haselden/MorningStar Lone Tree, LLC 
6950 South Potomac Street 
Centennial, Colorado 80112 
Contact:  Jerry Blocher 
 

Civil Engineer:  
J3 Engineering Consultants 
6505 South Paris Street, Suite B 
Centennial, Colorado 80111 
Contact:  Jason Margraf 

Architect:  
Lantz-Boggio Architects, P.C. 
5650 DTC Parkway, Suite 200 
Englewood, Colorado 80111 
Contact:  Dwight Miller 
 

Landscape Architect:  
Blu Design Group 
1238 South Broadway 
Denver, Colorado 80210 
Contact:  Ariel Gelman 

Electrical Engineer:  
MEP Engineering, Inc. 
6402 South Troy Circle 
Centennial, Colorado 80111 
Contact:  Mardi Jones 
 

 

 
Project Name: 
 
MorningStar at RidgeGate 
 Lot 1, Filing 21 of Rampart Range Metropolitan District 1 
 A portion of Lot-2A, RidgeGate Section 15 Filing No. 5 – 1st Amendment,  
 Located in the Northwest Quarter of Section 15, Township 6 South, Range 67  
 West of the Sixth Principal Meridian, City of Lone Tree, County of Douglas,  
 State of Colorado 
 
The MorningStar at RidgeGate project is a high-quality continuing care senior living 
campus in the Mixed Commercial/Mixed Use Planning Area as part of the RidgeGate 
Planned Development District, located in Lone Tree, Colorado.  The project will include 
124 independent living, 71 assisted living, and 29 memory care resident units for a total 
of 224 total units comprising approximately 265,000 square feet of enclosed space.  
Situated on 4.824 acres, the varying height structure has been designed to place the 
tallest and highest density portion of the project toward the northern side of the site, 

10/14/14 Planning Commission Meeting Packet Page 15 of 84



MorningStar at RidgeGate Page 2 of 2 

September 10, 2014  

thereby, minimizing the most immediate massing impact to the existing townhouses and 
other residences to the south of RidgeGate Parkway.  Additionally, the design takes 
advantage of the natural topography of the site that slopes downward from the south to 
the north.  This slope allows the first floor of the building to be approximately 13-feet 
lower than the floor level of the existing townhouses; thereby, lowering the roofline of 
the building by a story when viewed by the neighbors to the south. 
 
The purpose of this project is to provide a first-class home for its residents where they 
are able to maintain dignity and independence in a comfortable and familiar residential 
environment even after they require assistance with activities of daily living.  The 
location for this project was specifically selected for its prominence in the RidgeGate 
development, as well as its proximity to the surrounding residential neighborhoods.  
This immediacy allows the residents to continue to live in a residential setting and, quite 
often, close to their families.  Both inside and out, the project design works 
synergistically with the operating principles of MorningStar to promote the livelihood of 
the residents and the community as a whole. 
 
This SIP submittal includes the required drawings, documents, and narratives to 
demonstrate compliance with the Intent and Approval Standards of the Zoning Code. 
 
Construction is anticipated to commence with grading operations in November, 2014, 
foundations in December, 2014, and full construction activities by April, 2015.  
Anticipated project opening is in the first quarter of 2016.   
 
Sustainable features of the MorningStar at RidgeGate project include: 

• Close proximity to existing housing.  Families and staff who live in surrounding 
neighborhoods will have limited commutes to and from work, to the point that 
they could walk or bike to visit or for work. 

• Convenient access to local pedestrian and bike trails.  The local trail system 
helps facilitate low environmentally impactful means of transportation. 

• Energy Star appliances specified. 

• Most lighting will utilize LED lamps. 

• White membrane roofing used at low slope roof is specified to be used and has 
a higher reflectivity than darker colored membrane roofs. 

• In addition to locations required by Code, occupancy sensors are specified at all 
of the resident unit bathrooms.  This will lower energy use. 

• All paints are specified to be low VOC. 

• Surface parking lots have been limited in size, in favor of a parking structure 
beneath the building, allowing more area for landscaping. 

 

10/14/14 Planning Commission Meeting Packet Page 16 of 84



Page 1 of 3 

 

 
City of Lone Tree  
Design Guidelines  

 
 

Statement of Design Intent 
Using this form, or a separate page, please describe how the project meets the intent of the City of Lone Tree 
Design Guidelines, including the City’s Core Design Principles. (If the project is located within a Planned 
Development that is governed by additional design standards or guidelines, please address how the project 
satisfies the intent of those standards and guidelines as well).  
 
Please use the outline below as a guide in formulating your response. You may also use this opportunity to 
describe particular strengths, unique features, sustainable practices, or innovations that distinguish the design 
of the project, as well as any particular opportunities or challenges that should be considered. This Statement 
of Design Intent is intended to encourage thoughtful consideration of design guidelines and to give project 
reviewers and decision makers a more thorough understanding of the project.  
 

 
Project Name: MorningStar at RidgeGate 
 
Location:  RidgeGate Parkway and Commons Street                           
              
 
 

1. Overall Design Concept: 
Briefly describe the use and overall concept for the project as a whole.  
 
The MorningStar at RidgeGate project is a high-quality continuing care senior living campus in the Mixed 
Commercial/Mixed Use Planning Area as part of the RidgeGate Planned Development District, located 
in Lone Tree, Colorado.  The project will include 124 independent living, 71 assisted living, and 29 
memory care resident units for a total of 224 total units comprising approximately 265,000 square feet of 
enclosed space.  Situated on 4.824 acres, the varying height structure has been designed to place the 
tallest and highest density portion of the project toward the northern side of the site, thereby, minimizing 
the most immediate massing impact to the existing townhouses and other residences to the south of 
RidgeGate Parkway.   
 
As safety and security are of great concern to the residents and their families, the building is designed to 
provide enclosed courtyard.  One space is specifically for the memory care residents, and a second that 
is shared between the independent and assisted living residents.  This shared courtyard is located to the 
middle of the project site and helps to provide the buffer between the tallest portion of the building and 
adjacent neighboring residences.    
 
Finally, this project is designed and will operate in many hospitality aspects found in luxury resorts.  The 
wellness center includes a swimming pool, hot tub, massage room, and spaces for a physicians to 
provide treatment.  The dining facilities include a display kitchen similar to those found in many 
contemporary restaurants with both indoor and outdoor seating and a bar and lounge space appointed 
with soft seating for intimate gatherings with friends. 
 
 
 
 
 

10/14/14 Planning Commission Meeting Packet Page 17 of 84



Page 2 of 3 

 

2. Context and Site: 
Describe how the project relates functionally and visually to the context of the surrounding area 
(consider issues of form and character; the natural environment; vehicular and pedestrian access and 
circulation systems, etc.). 

  

As noted above, the MorningStar at RidgeGate project has been designed such that the tallest and 
highest density portion of the building is located at the northern side of the site, thereby, minimizing the 
most immediate massing impact to the existing townhouses and other residences to the south of 
RidgeGate Parkway.  Additionally, the design takes advantage of the natural topography of the site that 
slopes downward from the south to the north.  This slope allows the first floor of the building to be 
approximately 13-feet lower than the floor level of the existing townhouses; thereby, lowering the 
roofline of the building by a story when viewed by the neighbors to the south. 
 
The parking lots at the East and West entrances to the building are intentionally small in both size and 
number of spaces, forcing most of the parking to be centralized to the larger parking lot to the north 
side of the site and beneath a portion of the building accessed off of the northern parking lot.  As noted 
in the attached parking narrative from MorningStar, the number of drivers who reside in these types of 
projects are far fewer than other multi-family type projects, therefore, the traffic generated by this 
project is generally considered to be minimal. 
 
 

3. Public Realm 
 Describe how the project contributes to an inviting, safe and functional public realm (consider public 
 spaces, street/sidewalk – level experience, lighting, landscaping and signage).  
 

The MorningStar at Ridgegate landscaping is based on the following planting design principles:  
 
The planting palette provides a wide range of colors, textures, and heights all year long (see flowering 
chart). The intensive of use perennials and ornamental grasses provide a comfortable pedestrian scale.  
They were carefully selected not only for water and light requirements but also as soft elements 
defining circulation, and providing a vertical barrier (for views or safety).  
 
Trees and shrubs provide the upper layers with a lot of character and structure. During the wintertime, 
evergreens and most importantly ornamental grasses deliver color, texture and soft architectural edges 
at specific locations. From the urban perspective, large deciduous trees frame the entire site along with 
future city plantings. Large evergreens used in specific locations where a focal point was sought or as a 
complement to the building volume. Main entries to buildings are the focal point where the use of 
perennials, flowering trees, and ornamental grasses is most intense. Planting design defines spaces, 
complement signage, and hide undesirable views from public realm.  Retaining walls are softened with 
cascading perennials as well as evergreen vines in order to soften its mass and at the same time to 
produce a ‘garden-like-feeling’. 
 
The building design specifically addresses each of the site corners.  At the southwest corner, the 
building is stepped in plan around the corner to relate to the roundabout at RidgeGate Parkway and 
Commons Street.  The southeast corner of the building has been set into the ground to reduce the 
exposed portion of the building immediately at this corner to a single story, which is also set back from 
both the road and the detached sidewalk to allow landscaping to interact with retaining walls and the 
signage wall.  The building notched at the northeast corner to allow the integration of low retaining walls 
that can serve as seating walls.  Finally, a pedestrian plaza space is integrated into the northwest 
corner.  Planter walls step down as the building approaches this corner to allow plantings to soften the 
building edges and form a seating area for pedestrians and residents.  The private dining room with 

10/14/14 Planning Commission Meeting Packet Page 18 of 84



Page 3 of 3 

 

balconies has been located at this corner of the building to overlook the plaza and intersection and 
create an interaction between the street level and the building space that is perched a story above. 
 
The vehicular plaza at the West entry to the building is designed to emulate a European motor court.  
Scored concrete is used to identify the main entry, to distinguish this area from the asphalt paving at 
the parking area and to integrate it with the pedestrian circulation.  The pedestrian path to the West 
entry is lit with lantern fixtures mounted to the top of brick bollards that protect the path. 

 
 

4. Architectural Design 
Describe how the architectural design contributes to the unique qualities of the area and how design 
concepts result in a unified, functional and high quality design (consider building form and composition, 
façade composition and articulation, materials and colors and lighting).  
 
The exterior of the building is finished in a combination of brick and varied colors of stucco, and has 
sloped asphalt shingle roofs, low slope roofs with parapets, and accent roofs with red standing seam 
metal roofing.  The brick veneer is a strong and heavy material that is generally applied at the lower 
stories to form a “grounded base” for the building.  The mixture of stucco colors, interplay with the 
varying building heights and “ins and outs” of the façade to break down linear nature of the building.  
The placement and depth of the balconies is strategically done to create vertical stacking of elements to 
create further interest at the building’s façade.  Large windows are used throughout to offer views from 
the inside to the surrounding buildings, streetscape, and in the distance both downtown Denver and 
mountain scenery to the West.  These windows, with the stucco control joints, also create a rhythmic 
pattern at the exterior.   
 
To promote liveliness at the dining plaza located near the northwest corner of the building, vibrant 
yellow canopies are located above windows and doors creating an eye-catching and inviting outdoor 
space for residents to enjoy their dining experience. 
 
The story and a half tall wellness center, located at the southern portion of the site, is centralized 
between the independent living, 5-story building and the 3-story assisted living building so that it can be 
shared by all residents.  The exterior design includes large expanses of glazing to take advantage of 
the natural light and views toward RidgeGate Parkway.   

        
  

 

 

10/14/14 Planning Commission Meeting Packet Page 19 of 84



10/14/14 Planning Commission Meeting Packet Page 20 of 84



10/14/14 Planning Commission Meeting Packet Page 21 of 84



10/14/14 Planning Commission Meeting Packet Page 22 of 84



10/14/14 Planning Commission Meeting Packet Page 23 of 84



10/14/14 Planning Commission Meeting Packet Page 24 of 84



STORM INLET

EXISTING MANHOLE

23
EP

9
RU

38
NE

12
RU

29
LS

77
MSP

27
EP

30
NE

27
LS

14
EP

15
RU7

NE

14
MSP

33
MSP

13
GO

18
PRI

13
EP

21
CAL

8
EP

7
SW

45
LS

29
EP

14
MSP

3
SYR

50
PAL

15
EP

20
RU

5
KUL

51
GO

59
AUR

5
KUL

5
PMU

183
GR

79
AUR

3
SYR

3
SYR

5
PMU

59
MSP

14
MSP

5
SYR

45
NE

4
MAH

12
LS

12
PMU

10
PER

29
NE

32
RU

9
MAH

16
CAL

35
NE

RETAINING WALL
RE: CIVPMU

41
MSP

115
AUR

8
SW

22
RU

10
EP

79
PAL

58
MSP

8
MSP

WALL MOUNTED, GROUND LIT, MONUMENT SIGN

RELOCATED ELEC.
SWITCH CAB.

21
MSP

20
PRI

46
PRI

24
GAL

39
PRI

19
MSP

LOW SCREEN WALL

ELEC.SWITCH CAB.
TO BE RELOCATED

36"X36"  SQ. CONC. PLANTER (4TYP.)

16
MSP

27
MSP

PLANTING BY OTHERS (TYP.)

PLANTING BY OTHERS (TYP.)

PLANTING BY OTHERS (TYP.)

PLANTING BY OTHERS (TYP.)

7
PRI

12
EP

3
PRI

3
SYR

18
LS

16
RU

42
COR

13
EP

19
LS

28
MSP

49
LS

14
EP

22
NE

20
RU

24
NE

25
LS

3
SYR

11
EP

26
LS

6
EP

23
PAL

14
MSP

10
NE

10
AUR

15
LS

10
PAL4

EP

17
AUR

DINING PLAZA

26
CAL

19
PAL

9
EP

22
CAL

22
RU

8
NE

15
MSP

21
COR

12
PAL

3
RU

16
EUO

7
FOR

25
GO

11
EUO

7
JAM

21
PRI

48
PRI

24
PMU

19
FOR

24
ALC

15
ALC

11
CEN

14
FOR14

CEN
9

JAM

10
TEU

21
ALC

22
RU

23
CAL

59
MSP

PLANTING BY OTHERS (TYP.)

PLANTING BY OTHERS (TYP.)

PLANTING BY OTHERS (TYP.)

PLANTING BY OTHERS (TYP.)

92
LS

28
EP

14
HH

8
VM

57
VMJ

77
VM

86
VM

37
VMJ

35
AUR

33
GR

73
VM

8
VMJ

7
VMJ

11
SW

5
CAL

17
LS

14
EP

10
RU

3
KUL

33
NE

1
SYR

1
SYR

13
RU

12
EP

9
CAL

24
LS

PUBLIC PLAZA- REFER TO ARCH.

WALL MOUNTED, GROUND LIT
MONUMENT SIGN - REFER TO ARCH,

PLANTER WALLS- REFER TO ARCH.

MAIN ENTRY

WALL MOUNTED, GROUND LIT
MONUMENT SIGN

DIRECTIONAL SIGN

LOW RETAINING WALL
REFER TOT ARCH.

18" RAISED PLANTER

PLANTING BY OTHERS

PLANTING BY OTHERS

PLANTING BY OTHERS

5
HET

5
HET

5
HET

20
MAH

8
MAH

13
MAH

34
AUR

14
RU

9
CEN

26
GO

OVERHEAD SHADE
STRUCTURE (TYP.)

BENCH (TYP.)

5'-0" CONCRETE WALKWAY

3'-0" CONCRETE WALKWAY

OUTDOOR TERRACE

PLANTING BED

PLANTING BED

PLANTING BED

PLANTING BED

PLANTING BED

LAWN

LAWN

LAWN

PLANTING BED

PLANTING BED

POOL TERRACE

OUTDOOR TERRACE

PLANTING BED

PLANTING BED

BUILT-IN FIRE PIT

BUILT-IN SITTING
OVERHEAD STRUCTURE

OVERHEAD STRUCTURE

PLANTING BED

LAWN

CONCRETE

CONCRETE

BENCH (TYP.)

PLANTING BED

PLANTING BED

PLANTING BED

PLANTING BED

36" CONCRETE WALKWAY (TYP.)

CONCRETE TERRACE

MEMORY CARE COURTYARD

INDOOR  COURTYARD

MOVABLE OUTDOOR FURNITURE
REFER TO ARCH. CUT SHEETS

MOVABLE OUTDOOR FURNITURE
REFER TO ARCH. CUT SHEETS

OUTDOOR FURNITURE
REFER TO ARCH.

DN

2
PMU

64
VMJ

6
PMU

74
VM

69
NE

SOD

SOD

15
PRI SOD

SOD

45
VM

SOD

SOD
NOTE:LAWN PANEL  DOES NOT OBSTRUCT SIGN

SOD

SOD

19
VMJ

18
TEU

4
VMJ

13
VMJ

SOD

REFER TO ARCH.
STRIPING - REFER TO ARCH.

TRANSFORMER - RE: ELECT.

11
PRI

15
HH

18
EUO

14
EUO 43

EUO

SLOPE

S
LO

P
E

SL
O

PE

SURFACE DRAIN (TYP.)

1.5% SLOPE

(TYP.)

SURFACE DRAIN (TYP.)

SURFACE DRAIN (TYP.)

1%SLOPE

1%
SL

O
PE

SLOPE

SL
O

PE

SLOPE

PLANTING BED

SURFACE DRAIN (TYP.)

SURFACE DRAIN (TYP.)

SLOPE

SLOPE SL
OPE

SLOPE

SL
O

PE

SLOPE

SURFACE DRAIN (TYP.)

1%SLOPE

1%
SL

O
PE

1%
SLOPE

REFER TO CIVIL FOR DETAILED
GRADING AND DRAINGE

REFER TO CIVIL FOR DETAILED
GRADING AND DRAINGE

1PLANTING  PLAN (NO TREES OR SHRUBS)
SCALE 1/32"=1'-0"

NORTH

LA
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

 P
LA

N
4

09
20

04

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

N
o.

D
at

e

D
ra

w
n 

B
y:

D
es

ig
ne

d
 B

y:

C
h

ec
ke

d
 B

y:

S
h

ee
t 

N
um

b
er

:

P
ro

je
ct

 N
um

b
er

:

TK
1

A
G

D
M

234567














































To be completed by Denver Water

69
05

 S
o

ut
h

 P
o

to
m

ac
 S

t.
C

en
te

nn
ia

l C
O

 8
01

12
P

h
o

ne
: 3

03
-7

28
-3

83
0

C
o

nt
ac

t:
 J

er
ry

 B
lo

ch
er

1s
t S

ub
m

itt
al

04
/2

5/
14

2n
d 

S
ub

m
itt

al
09

/1
5/

14

O
F 

15

3r
d 

S
ub

m
itt

al
 (P

la
nn

in
g 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 R
ev

ie
w

)
09

/1
7/

14

10/14/14 Planning Commission Meeting Packet Page 25 of 84



3
SYR

5
SYR

3
MAC

3
KUL

5
PNO

5
PMU

3
MAC

3
MAL

3
MAL

2
MAC

1
MAL

3
SYR

3
MAC

2
MAL

3
GL

1
CO

1
PIN

4
PMU

6
SYR

1
MAL

1
SYR

1
CO

3
MAL

4
GL

1
GL

MEMORY CARE COURTYARD

INDOOR  COURTYARD

3
TAN

1
TAN

1
TAN

1
TAN

1
TAN

1
TAN

1
MAL

1
MAL

DN

4
MAC

7
SYR

4
SYR

1
MAL

5
TC

1
CO

SLOPE

S
LO

P
E

SL
O

PE

SURFACE DRAIN (TYP.)

1.5% SLOPE

(TYP.)

SURFACE DRAIN (TYP.)

SURFACE DRAIN (TYP.)

1%SLOPE

1%
SL

O
PE

SLOPE

SL
O

PE

SLOPE

EASEMENT : REFER TO CIVIL

EASEMENT : REFER TO CIVIL

EASEMENT : REFER TO CIVIL

EASEMENT : REFER TO CIVIL

EASEMENT : REFER TO CIVIL

SURFACE DRAIN (TYP.)

SURFACE DRAIN (TYP.)

SLOPE

SLOPE SL
OPE

SLOPE

SL
O

PE

SLOPE

SURFACE DRAIN (TYP.)

1%SLOPE

1%
SL

O
PE

1%
SLOPE

REFER TO CIVIL FOR DETAILED
GRADING AND DRAINGE

REFER TO CIVIL FOR DETAILED
GRADING AND DRAINGE

1PLANTING  PLAN (TREES & SHRUBS)
SCALE 1/32"=1'-0"

NORTH

LA
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

 P
LA

N
5

09
20

04

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

N
o.

D
at

e

D
ra

w
n 

B
y:

D
es

ig
ne

d
 B

y:

C
h

ec
ke

d
 B

y:

S
h

ee
t 

N
um

b
er

:

P
ro

je
ct

 N
um

b
er

:

TK
1

A
G

D
M

234567














































To be completed by Denver Water

69
05

 S
o

ut
h

 P
o

to
m

ac
 S

t.
C

en
te

nn
ia

l C
O

 8
01

12
P

h
o

ne
: 3

03
-7

28
-3

83
0

C
o

nt
ac

t:
 J

er
ry

 B
lo

ch
er

1s
t S

ub
m

itt
al

04
/2

5/
14

2n
d 

S
ub

m
itt

al
09

/1
5/

14

O
F 

15

3r
d 

S
ub

m
itt

al
 (P

la
nn

in
g 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 R
ev

ie
w

)
09

/1
7/

14

10/14/14 Planning Commission Meeting Packet Page 26 of 84



INDOOR  COURTYARD

DN

1IRRIGATION PLAN
SCALE 1/32"=1'-0"

NORTH

LA
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

 P
LA

N
4

09
20

04

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

N
o.

D
at

e

D
ra

w
n 

B
y:

D
es

ig
ne

d
 B

y:

C
h

ec
ke

d
 B

y:

S
h

ee
t 

N
um

b
er

:

P
ro

je
ct

 N
um

b
er

:

TK
1

A
G

D
M

234567














































To be completed by Denver Water

69
05

 S
o

ut
h

 P
o

to
m

ac
 S

t.
C

en
te

nn
ia

l C
O

 8
01

12
P

h
o

ne
: 3

03
-7

28
-3

83
0

C
o

nt
ac

t:
 J

er
ry

 B
lo

ch
er

1s
t S

ub
m

itt
al

04
/2

5/
14

2n
d 

S
ub

m
itt

al
09

/1
5/

14

O
F 

15

3r
d 

S
ub

m
itt

al
 (P

la
nn

in
g 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 R
ev

ie
w

)
09

/1
7/

14

10/14/14 Planning Commission Meeting Packet Page 27 of 84



PLAN

WIDTH OF
ROOT BALL

FLEXIBLE TIES

UPRIGHT STAKES

TREE WRAP

FIRMLY FORMED SAUCER (USE
TOPSOIL).  ANGLE OF REPOSE VARIES
WITH STEEPNESS OF  SLOPE AND
SOIL TYPE (WHERE DIRECTED ONLY).

MULCH LAYER
TOP OF ROOT FLARE

WIDTH OF PLANTING PIT

UNDISTURBED SOIL

ROOTBALL

WILDLIFE PROTECTION WIRE FENCE

PLANTING SOIL

FINISHED GRADE

EDGE OF ROOTBALL PIT

FENCE

ROOTBALL

STAKE

120°

GUY WIRE

WIDTH OF
ROOT BALL

STAKE

FIRMLY FORMED SAUCER (USE
TOPSOIL).  ANGLE OF REPOSE VARIES
WITH STEEPNESS OF  SLOPE AND SOIL
TYPE (WHERE DIRECTED ONLY).

MULCH LAYER
TOP OF ROOT FLARE

WIDTH OF PLANTING PIT

UNDISTURBED SOIL

ROOTBALL

PLANTING SOIL

FINISHED GRADE

PLAN

EDGE OF ROOTBALL PIT

STAKE

EDGE OF ROOTBALL

TURNBUCKLE

120°

MULCH LAYER

WIDTH OF
ROOT BALL

WIDTH OF PLANTING PIT

TOP OF ROOT FLARE

UNDISTURBED SOIL

ROOTBALL

PLANTING SOIL

FINISHED GRADE

FIRMLY FORMED SAUCER (USE
TOPSOIL). ANGLE OF REPOSE
VARIES WITH STEEPNESS OF
SLOPE AND SOIL TYPE

MULCH LAYER

PLANT

1/2 O.C. DIMENSION

PREPARED PLANTING BED;
DEPTH AS SPECIFIED

24" DEPTH TILLED SOIL

PRIOR TO BACKFILLING, CUT
"POT-BOUND" ROOTS ON OUTSIDE;
REMOVE 25%-50% OF BARK MIXTURE
ON ROOT BALL. MIX REMOVED
CONTAINER MATERIAL WITH BACKFILL.

EDGE OF BED/PLANTER

2" SHREDDED HARDWOOD MULCH.
INSTALL PRIOR TO PLANT
INSTALLATION

12
" M

IN
2"

 M
IN

O.C.DIMENSION

PLANTING NOTES

ALL PLANTING BEDS TO BE AMENDED UPON COLORADO STATE UNIVERSITY (CSU) COOPERATIVE EXTENSION SOIL

TESTING FACILITY RECOMMENDATIONS. (WWW.COLOSTATE.EDU)

SUBMIT SOIL SAMPLES, A COPY OF PANTING PLAN, AND PLANT LIST TO COLORADO STATE UNIVERSITY SOIL TESTING LABORATORY FOR A ROUTINE SOIL TEST.

ANY PLANT SUBSTITUTIONS ARE TO BE APPROVED BY LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT AND/OR OWNER PRIOR TO INSTALLATION.

IRRIGATION CONSULTANT  TO PROVIDE SHOP DRAWING FOR IRRIGATION COVERAGE AND LAYOUT.

APPLY 4" OF MULCH. FOLLOW CSU RECOMMENDATIONS FOR MULCH TYPE.

FOLLOW CSU RECOMMENDATIONS IF NITROGEN DEFICIENCY IS DETECTED.

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE SOLELY RESPONSIBLE FOR SAFETY IN, ON OR ABOUT THE PROJECT SITE.  ANY DAMAGE TO ADJACENT PROPERTY OR UTILITIES

NOT DESIGNATED FOR REMOVAL, RELOCATION OR REPLACEMENT, SHALL BE REPAIRED

AND/OR REPLACED BY THE CONTRACTOR AT THE CONTRACTOR'S EXPENSE.

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR OBTAINING ANY PERMITS OR LICENSES REQUIRED FOR THE PERFORMANCE  OF THE WORK AS APPLICABLE TO THE PROJECT.

THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT AND/OR OWNER MAKE NO WARRANTY AS TO THE CORRECTNESS AND/OR COMPLETENESS OF THE EXISTING UTILITY LOCATIONS SHOWN OR

NOT SHOWN ON THE PLANS.

 THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR FIELD VERIFYING THE HORIZONTAL AND VERTICAL LOCATION OF ALL EXISTING  UTILITIES  INCLUDING WATER,

 SEWER, STORM DRAINS, GAS TRANSMISSION LINES, AND OTHER UTILITIES ABOVE AND BELOW

 THE SURFACE THAT MAY  AFFECT THE PROJECT.  SHOULD DISCREPANCY OR CONFLICT BE DISCOVERED THE CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY THE OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE

 IMMEDIATELY, AND SHALL NOT CONTINUE CONSTRUCTION UNTIL SAID CONFLICT CAN BE RESOLVED IN WRITING.

 THE CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY ALL UTILITY COMPANIES AT LEAST 48 HOURS PRIOR TO BEGINNING CONSTRUCTION TO  VERIFY DEPTH AND LOCATION OF ALL UTILITIES.

 ANY CONSTRUCTION DEBRIS OR MUD-TRACKING IN THE PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY RESULTING FROM THE WORK SHALL BE REMOVED  IMMEDIATELY BY THE CONTRACTOR.

 CONTRACTOR SHALL TAKE APPROPRIATE MEASURES TO PROTECT BOTH ON SITE AND ADJACENT PROPERTY, EXISTING TREES AND VEGETATION.

 AREAS OUTSIDE THE LIMITS OF WORK AS SHOWN ON THE PLANS AND/OR CROSS SECTIONS SHALL REMAIN UNDISTURBED.

 ANY ITEMS NOT INTENDED FOR DEMOLITION MUST BE PROTECTED.

 ANY DAMAGE WILL BE REPAIRED AT CONTRACTOR'S EXPENSE.

GENERAL LANDSCAPE NOTES

• THE WORK CONSISTS OF THE PROVISION OF ALL MATERIALS AND WORK AS CALLED FOR ON THE LANDSCAPE PLANS, SPECIFICATIONS AND AS HEREIN SPECIFIED. THIS WORK SHALL
INCLUDE, BUT IS NOT LIMITED TO, THE SUPPLYING OF ALL PLANT MATERIALS SPECIFIED, THE FURNISHING OF ALL LABOR, EQUIPMENT, WATER, ELECTRICITY, EQUIPMENT AND ALL
MATERIALS CALLED FOR AND IN PERFORMING ALL OPERATIONS IN CONNECTION WITH THE LANDSCAPE INSTALLATION. FURTHER, THE WORK SHALL INCLUDE MAINTAINING OF ALL PLANTS
AND PLANTING AREAS UNTIL FINAL ACCEPTANCE BY THE OWNER AND FULFILLING ALL GUARANTEE PROVISIONS. THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR SHALL ASSIGN A QUALIFIED PROJECT
MANAGER AND FIELD SUPERVISOR TO WORK DIRECTLY WITH THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT AND SUPERVISE THE WORK AT ALL TIMES THROUGH FINAL OWNER ACCEPTANCE.

• ALL INSTALLATION OF PLANT MATERIAL SHALL COMPLY WITH APPLICABLE JURISDICTIONAL CODES. THE CONTRACTOR IS  RESPONSIBLE FOR OBTAINING ALL PERMITS ASSOCIATED WITH
HIS WORK.

• ALL ON-SITE EXISTING CONDITIONS INCLUDING SURFACE AND  SUBSURFACE UTILITIES, GRADES, DIMENSIONS AND SOIL  CONDITIONS SHALL BE VERIFIED BY THE LANDSCAPE
CONTRACTOR BEFORE CONSTRUCTION BEGINS. THE LANDSCAPE  CONTRACTOR SHALL BECOME FAMILIAR WITH ALL PLANS PREPARED BY OTHERS THAT AFFECT THE LANDSCAPE AND
IRRIGATION WORK. ANY DISCREPANCIES SHALL BE BROUGHT TO  THE ATTENTION OF THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT.

• EVERY POSSIBLE SAFEGUARD SHALL BE TAKEN TO PROTECT  BUILDING SURFACES, EQUIPMENT, FURNISHINGS AND EXISTING  PLANTING AREAS TO REMAIN INCLUDING LAWN. THE
CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY DAMAGE OR INJURY TO  PERSON OR PROPERTY THAT MAY OCCUR AS A RESULT OF NEGLIGENCE IN THE EXECUTION OF THE CONTRACTOR'S
WORK.

• THE CONTRACTOR SHALL INTERFACE WITH OTHER WORK BEING  PERFORMED BY OTHER CONTRACTORS.  IT WILL BE NECESSARY  FOR THE CONTRACTOR TO COORDINATE AND SCHEDULE
ACTIVITIES, WHERE NECESSARY, WITH OTHER CONTRACTORS  AND THEIR SUBCONTRACTORS. THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR  SHALL INSURE THAT THEIR WORK DOES NOT IMPACT
ESTABLISHED OR PROJECTED DRAINAGE PATTERNS.

• PRIOR TO PLANTING INSTALLATION, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL  CONFIRM THE AVAILABILITY OF ALL THE SPECIFIED PLANT  MATERIALS AND MAKE ARRANGEMENTS WITH THE LANDSCAPE
ARCHITECT TO REVIEW AND MUTUALLY FIELD TAG AGREED UPON  PLANT MATERIALS AT LEAST 2 WEEKS PRIOR TO PROCUREMENT  AND DELIVERY TO THE JOB SITE. REPRESENTATIVE OF
THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT MAY ALLOW SAMPLES OF SHRUBS AND GROUNDCOVER TO BE PROVIDED BY THE LANDSCAPE  CONTRACTOR IN LIEU OF FIELD VISITS.

• ALL PLANT MATERIAL SHALL MEET OR EXCEED THE AMERICAN STANDARDS FOR NURSERY STOCK AS ESTABLISHED BY THE AMERICAN ASSOCIATION OF NURSERYMAN AND APPROVED BY
THE AMERICAN NATIONAL STANDARDS INSTITUTE INC. ALL PLANT MATERIAL SIZES SPECIFIED ARE MINIMUM SIZES. ALL  CONTAINER AND TREE CALIPER SIZES ARE MINIMUM.  CONTAINER
OR CALIPER SIZE MAY BE INCREASED IF NECESSARY TO PROVIDE  OVERALL PLANT SIZE SPECIFIED.

• ALL PLANT MATERIAL SHALL BE SUBJECT TO APPROVAL AT THE JOB SITE BY THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT PRIOR TO INSTALLATION. WHEN DELIVERED PLANT MATERIAL DOES NOT COMPLY
WITH THE REQUIREMENTS, THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT RESERVES THE RIGHT TO REJECT SUCH PLANTS AND REQUIRE THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR TO REPLACE REJECTED WORK AND
CONTINUE SPECIFIED MAINTENANCE UNTIL REINSPECTED AND FOUND TO BE ACCEPTABLE. THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR SHALL REMOVE REJECTED PLANTS AND MATERIALS FROM THE
PLANTING SITE WITHIN 48 HOURS AND REPLACE WITH ACCEPTABLE MATERIALS.

• NO PLANT SUBSTITUTIONS WILL BE PERMITTED WITHOUT PRIOR  WRITTEN APPROVAL FROM THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT.  IF  SPECIFIED PLANT MATERIALS ARE NOT AVAILABLE, IDENTIFY
THE  EXTENT AND QUANTITY IN WRITING TOGETHER WITH A  RECOMMENDED SUBSTITUTION THAT MEETS OR EXCEEDS THE  INITIAL REQUIREMENT.

• THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR  REMOVING EXISTING VEGETATION AS REQUIRED AND PREPARING  PLANTING AREAS PRIOR TO INSTALLATION OF PLANT
MATERIALS.

• THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR SHALL TEST PROJECT SOILS TO VERIFY THAT THE SOILS ON-SITE ARE ACCEPTABLE FOR PROPER GROWTH OF PLANT MATERIALS AND ADEQUATE
DRAINAGE IN PLANT BEDS AND PLANTERS. THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE THE LOCATION, AND PROCUREMENT OF EXISTING ON-SITE SOIL SAMPLES WITH THE
LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT. REPRESENTATIVE SAMPLES SHALL BE SUBMITTED TO A CERTIFIED TESTING LABORATORY FOR ANALYSIS. THE FINDINGS, TOGETHER WITH RECOMMENDATIONS
FOR AMENDING THE SOILS SHALL BE REVIEWED AND APPROVED BY THE OWNER AND LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT PRIOR TO DELIVERY AND INSTALLATION OF PLANT MATERIALS AT THE JOB.

• THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR SHALL INSURE ADEQUATE  VERTICAL DRAINAGE IN ALL PLANT BEDS AND PLANTERS.  VERTICAL DRILLING THROUGH HARDPAN AND COMPACTED FILL  SHALL
BE ACCOMPLISHED TO INSURE DRAINAGE.

• ALL PLANTING BEDS SHALL BE STAKED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PLANS AND APPROVED BY THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT PRIOR TO PLANTING. THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR SHALL
PROVIDE STAKES OR IRRIGATION FLAGS TO LOCATE THE EDGES OF ALL SHRUB AND GROUNDCOVER PLANT BEDS AND INDIVIDUAL TREES. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL FIELD STAKE THE
LOCATION OF ALL PLANT BED OUTLINES AND INDIVIDUAL TREES AND OBTAIN THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT'S APPROVAL PRIOR TO DELIVERY AND INSTALLATION OF THE PLANT MATERIAL. IF
EXISTING CONDITIONS DO NOT ALLOW THE DESIGN TO BE LAID OUT AS SHOWN, NOTIFY THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT IMMEDIATELY.

• ALL PROPOSED TREES SHALL BE INSTALLED EITHER ENTIRELY IN  OR ENTIRELY OUT OF PLANTING BEDS.  PLANTING BED OUTLINES  SHALL NOT BE OBSTRUCTED AND SHALL BE SMOOTH
AND  FLOWING.  IF TREES ARE LOCATED OUTSIDE PLANTING BEDS IN  SOD AREAS, MAINTAIN A MINIMUM 3' WIDE OFFSET TO ALLOW FOR  MOWERS TO MANEUVER.

• THE PLANT QUANTITIES SHOWED ON THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACT  DOCUMENTS ARE FOR THE CONVENIENCE OF THE LANDSCAPE  CONTRACTOR. THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR IS
RESPONSIBLE  FOR VERIFYING ALL QUANTITIES AND REPORTING ANY  DISCREPANCIES TO THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT FOR  CLARIFICATION PRIOR TO CONTRACT AWARD AND
COMMENCEMENT OF WORK.

• THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY THE EXTENT OF  SOD WORK IN THE FIELD. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE  RESPONSIBLE FOR PROVIDING GRASS SOD IN THE AREAS SHOWN
ON THE PLAN IN SUFFICIENT QUANTITY TO PROVIDE FULL  COVERAGE. ADDITIONAL SOD REQUIRED WILL BE ADJUSTED  BASED ON A SQUARE FOOTAGE UNIT PRICE. AREAS TO BE  SODDED
SHALL BE AMENDED PER SOILS REPORT TO PROVIDE  REQUIRED NUTRIENTS AND SOIL PH OF BETWEEN 6.0 AND 7.0.

• THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR PROVIDING  PLANTS, SPACED AS SPECIFIED ON THE PLANT LIST.  WHEN  INSTALLING SHRUBS IN PLANTING BEDS, SPACING OF MATERIAL
SHALL TAKE PRECEDENCE OVER QUANTITY OF MATERIALS  INDICATED FOR PLANTING AREAS. NOTIFY LANDSCAPE  ARCHITECT IMMEDIATELY IF SUCH SITUATIONS ARISE. SHRUB  AND
GROUNDCOVER SPACING IS GENERALLY INDICATED ON THE  PLANT LIST FOR ALL `MASS PLANTINGS'. ACCENT SHRUBS AND  TREES THAT ARE NOT PART OF MASS PLANTINGS SHALL BE
SPACED AS SHOWN ON THE PLANS.

• THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE STABILITY AND PLUMB CONDITION OF ALL INSTALLED PLANT MATERIALS AND REPLACING ANY DAMAGED PLANT MATERIAL.
WITH PLANTS OF EQUAL KIND, SIZE AND CONDITION AT NO ADDITIONAL COST TO THE OWNER. NO CHAINS OR CABLES SHALL BE USED WHEN INSTALLING PLANT MATERIALS. IT SHALL BE
THE CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY TO PREVENT PLANTS AND TREES FROM FALLING OR BEING BLOWN OVER, AND TO REPLACE ALL PLANTS WHICH ARE DAMAGED DUE TO INADEQUATE
GUYING OR STAKING, AT NO ADDITIONAL COST TO THE OWNER. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL REMOVE ALL STAKING MATERIALS THE END OF THE WARRANTY PERIOD AND DISPOSE OFFSITE.

• ALL PLANTING BEDS SHALL BE TOP-DRESSED WITH A 3" LAYER OF  MULCH AS SPECIFIED.  ALL TREES SHALL HAVE A 3" THICK MULCH  RING PLACED AROUND THE BASE OF THE TRUNK.  THE
LANDSCAPE SCOPE OF WORK INCLUDES MULCHING AS AN  INTEGRAL PART THE PROJECT AND NOT AS A SEPARATE COST OR  WORKS ITEM. ALL PLANT MATERIALS SHALL RECEIVE
ADEQUATE WATERING BY  THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR AS REQUIRED UNTIL THE  LANDSCAPE IRRIGATION SYSTEM IS FULLY OPERATIONAL AND  UNTIL FINAL ACCEPTANCE BY OWNER.

• ALL EXISTING PLANT BEDS TO REMAIN WITHIN THE  CONSTRUCTION LIMIT LINE SHALL BE LEFT UNDISTURBED.  EXISTING TREES TO REMAIN, AS NOTED ON THE DRAWINGS,  SHALL BE LEFT
UNDISTURBED AND PROTECTED BY APPROPRIATE TREE PROTECTION FENCING ERECTED AT THE PERIMETER OF THE TREE DRIP  LINE (S).  NO VEHICLE SHALL TRAVERSE THIS AREA NOR
SHALL  ANY STORAGE OF MATERIALS OR EQUIPMENT BE PERMITTED  WITHIN THE AREA OF THE TREE DRIPLINE(S). ANY EXISTING  PLANT BEDS OR TREES DAMAGED BY CONSTRUCTION
ACTIVITY  SHALL BE REPLACED BY THE RESPONSIBLE PARTY AT THEIR OWN EXPENSE.

• NO TREES SHALL BE PLANTED WITHIN DESIGNATED UTILITY  CORRIDORS, PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY (WITHOUT RIGHT OF WAY  UTILIZATION PERMIT). FIELD ADJUST AS NECESSARY AND
REVIEW  ADJUSTMENTS WITH THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT PRIOR TO  INSTALLATION.

• THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR PROVIDING  EFFECTIVE TRAFFIC CONTROL AND REMOVAL OF ALL DEBRIS AND  EXCAVATED BACKFILL OFF-SITE ON A DAILY BASIS AT NO
ADDITIONAL COST TO THE OWNER.

• ALL DECIDUOUS TREES < 2" IN CAL DO NOT NEED TO BE STAKED UNLESS THE DRAWINGS INFORM OTHERWISE.

• ALL BURLAP, ROPE AND WIRE IS TO BE REMOVED FROM ALL B&B STOCK PRIOR TO BACKFILLING. NO EXCEPTIONS.

• WRAP ALL DECIDUOUS TREE TRUNKS WITH TREE WRAP

• WILDLIFE PROTECTION FENCING IS REQUIRED AROUND ALL TREES. PROVIDE 2"X2" WIRE MESH AROUND THE TRUNK OF ALL DECIDUOUS TREES AND AROUND THE DRIP LINE OF ALL SPRUCE
TREES.

LA
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

 P
LA

N
7

09
20

04

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

N
o.

D
at

e

D
ra

w
n 

B
y:

D
es

ig
ne

d
 B

y:

C
h

ec
ke

d
 B

y:

S
h

ee
t 

N
um

b
er

:

P
ro

je
ct

 N
um

b
er

:

TK
1

A
G

D
M

234567














































To be completed by Denver Water

69
05

 S
o

ut
h

 P
o

to
m

ac
 S

t.
C

en
te

nn
ia

l C
O

 8
01

12
P

h
o

ne
: 3

03
-7

28
-3

83
0

C
o

nt
ac

t:
 J

er
ry

 B
lo

ch
er

1s
t S

ub
m

itt
al

04
/2

5/
14

2n
d 

S
ub

m
itt

al
09

/1
5/

14

O
F 

15

3r
d 

S
ub

m
itt

al
 (P

la
nn

in
g 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 R
ev

ie
w

)
09

/1
7/

14

Deciduous Tree Planting Detail SCALE: 1/2"=1'-0"1

Evergreen Tree Planting Detail SCALE: 1/2"=1'-0"3

Deciduous Shrub Planting Detail SCALE: 1/2"=1'-0"2

Perennial Planting Detail SCALE: 1/2"=1'-0"4

10/14/14 Planning Commission Meeting Packet Page 28 of 84



13
30

4

M
A

S

D
G

M

(W) 303.936.1633

(F) 303.934.3299

info@mep-eng.com

6402 S. Troy Circle

Centennial, CO 80111

www.mep-eng.com

M
A

S

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

N
o.

D
at

e

D
ra

w
n 

B
y:

D
es

ig
ne

d
 B

y:

C
h

ec
ke

d
 B

y:

S
h

ee
t 

N
um

b
er

:

P
ro

je
ct

 N
um

b
er

:

1234567














































69
05

 S
o

ut
h

 P
o

to
m

ac
 S

t.
C

en
te

nn
ia

l C
O

 8
01

12
P

h
o

ne
: 3

03
-7

28
-3

83
0

C
o

nt
ac

t:
 J

er
ry

 B
lo

ch
er

1s
t S

ub
m

itt
al

04
/2

5/
14

2n
d 

S
ub

m
itt

al
09

/1
5/

14
3r

d 
S

ub
m

itt
al

 (P
la

nn
in

g 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 R

ev
ie

w
)

09
/1

5/
14

8 
of

 1
5



















10/14/14 Planning Commission Meeting Packet Page 29 of 84



13
30

4

M
A

S

D
G

M

(W) 303.936.1633

(F) 303.934.3299

info@mep-eng.com

6402 S. Troy Circle

Centennial, CO 80111

www.mep-eng.com

M
A

S

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

N
o.

D
at

e

D
ra

w
n 

B
y:

D
es

ig
ne

d
 B

y:

C
h

ec
ke

d
 B

y:

S
h

ee
t 

N
um

b
er

:

P
ro

je
ct

 N
um

b
er

:

1234567














































69
05

 S
o

ut
h

 P
o

to
m

ac
 S

t.
C

en
te

nn
ia

l C
O

 8
01

12
P

h
o

ne
: 3

03
-7

28
-3

83
0

C
o

nt
ac

t:
 J

er
ry

 B
lo

ch
er

1s
t S

ub
m

itt
al

04
/2

5/
14

2n
d 

S
ub

m
itt

al
09

/1
5/

14
3r

d 
S

ub
m

itt
al

 (P
la

nn
in

g 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 R

ev
ie

w
)

09
/1

5/
14

9 
of

 1
5
































10/14/14 Planning Commission Meeting Packet Page 30 of 84



13
30

4

M
A

S

D
G

M

(W) 303.936.1633

(F) 303.934.3299

info@mep-eng.com

6402 S. Troy Circle

Centennial, CO 80111

www.mep-eng.com

M
A

S

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

N
o.

D
at

e

D
ra

w
n 

B
y:

D
es

ig
ne

d
 B

y:

C
h

ec
ke

d
 B

y:

S
h

ee
t 

N
um

b
er

:

P
ro

je
ct

 N
um

b
er

:

1234567














































69
05

 S
o

ut
h

 P
o

to
m

ac
 S

t.
C

en
te

nn
ia

l C
O

 8
01

12
P

h
o

ne
: 3

03
-7

28
-3

83
0

C
o

nt
ac

t:
 J

er
ry

 B
lo

ch
er

1s
t S

ub
m

itt
al

04
/2

5/
14

2n
d 

S
ub

m
itt

al
09

/1
5/

14
3r

d 
S

ub
m

itt
al

 (P
la

nn
in

g 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 R

ev
ie

w
)

09
/1

5/
14

10
 o

f 1
5
















10/14/14 Planning Commission Meeting Packet Page 31 of 84



FD FD

DN

FD FD FD FD

FD

FD

FD

FD

DN

28'-11" 515'-1"

2
8

'-
6

"

18'-0" 24'-0" 18'-0"

A

14 of 15

A

14 of 15

B

14 of 15

B

14 of 15

C

14 of 15

C

14 of 15

1
7

5
'-
6

"
1

7
3
'-
1
1

"

C
O

M
M

O
N

S
 S

T
R

E
E

T

B
E

L
V

E
D

E
R

E
 L

A
N

E
(D

E
V

E
L

O
P

E
D

 B
Y

 O
T

H
E

R
S

)

RIDGEGATE PARKWAY

3
3

'-
0

"
1

3
'-
0

"

544'-0"

1
0

3
'-
4

 1
/4

"

6
'-0

"

8
'-0

 1
/1

6
"

11 of 15

2 11 of 15

3

15 PARKING
SPACES

8 PARKING SPACES

10'-0" PARKING
& SNOW, UTILITY &
PEDESTRIAN EASEMENT

BUILDING ABOVE

ELEC. SWITCH CAB.
TO BE RELOCATED

5 STORY INDEPENDENT LIVING

3 STORY
INDEPENDENT

LIVING

3 STORY ASSISTED LIVING

2 STORY ASSISTED LIVING

3 STORY INDEPENDENT LIVING

1 STORY POOL FACILITY

1 STORY MEMORY CARE

INTERIOR
COURTYARD

INTERIOR MEMORY
CARE COURTYARD

PUBLIC PLAZA

14 PARKING SPACES @ 9'-0" WIDE & 9'-0" AISLE

RELOCATED ELEC.
SWITCH CAB.

TIERED RETAINING WALLS

EXIT

EXIT

EXIT
EXIT

EXIT

MAIN ENTRY

MAIN ENTRY

EXIT

EXIT

EXIT

PRIVATE DINING PLAZA

PIN MOUNTED LETTERS
ON BRICK WALL

MONUMENT SIGN - PIN MOUNTED
LETTERS ON STACKED BLOCK WALL
(ASHLAR PATTERN )

MONUMENT SIGN -
PIN MOUNTED
LETTERS ON
STACKED BLOCK
WALL (ASHLAR
PATTERN )

DIRECTIONAL
SIGN

PRECAST STACK BLOCK
RETAINING WALLS  (ASHLAR
PATTERN)

30" H. SCREEN WALL -
STACKED BLOCK WALL
(ASHLAR PATTERN )

10"X 10" SQ.
LIGHTED BOLLARD
(9 TYP.) - RE: ELEC.

36"X36" SQ. PRECAST
CONC. PLANTER (4
TYP.)

TREE GRATE

TRASH
ENCLOSURE

BISTRO SEATING
CASUAL
SEATING

DINING
SEATING

RAISED PLANTING
BEDS - REFER TO
LANDSCAPE PLAN

EXISTING MANHOLE

NEW STORM INLET

EXIT

RAISED PLANTING BEDS -
REFER TO LANDSCAPE PLAN

EXIT

PRECAST STACKED
BLOCK RETAINING WALL
(ASHLAR PATTERN)

TIERED PRECAST
STACKED BLOCK
RETAINING WALLS
(ASHLAR PATTERN)

TIERED PRECAST
STACKED BLOCK
RETAINING WALLS
(ASHLAR PATTERN)

EXISTING SITE
UTILITIES

5 STORY
INDEPENDENT
LIVING BUILDING

RAISED PLANTING
BEDS - REFER TO
LANDSCAPE PLAN

PRECAST STACK BLOCK RETAINING
WALLS (ASHLAR PATTERN)

RAISED PLANTER - REFER
TO LANDSCAPE PLAN

8'W CONCRETE SIDEWALK - BY OTHERS

PRECAST STACK
BLOCK RETAINING
WALLS (ASHLAR
PATTERN)

8'W CONCRETE
SIDEWALK - BY
OTHERS

GENERATOR

6" THK. SCORED
CONC. MOTORCADE -
RE: SOILS REPORT

6.5" THK. ASPHALT PRK'G.
LOT - RE: SOILS REPORT

13 PARKING SPACES @ 9'-0" WIDE

12 PARKING SPACES @ 9'-0" WIDE

NORTH PARKING LOT
42 PARKING SPACES

3 PARKING
SPACES
@ 9'-0"
WIDE

EXIT

EXIT

TRANSFORMER

ARTS CENTER DRIVE
(DEVELOPED BY OTHERS)

PLANTING BED
(AT GRADE)- REFER TO
LANDSCAPE PLAN

PRIVATE DINING
/EVENTS BALCONIES

SITE FURNITURE

PUBLIC 6' W. CONC.
SIDEWALK - BY
OTHERS

8'W CONC.
PEDESTRIAN WALK

PRECAST STACK BLOCK
RETAINING WALLS  (ASHLAR
PATTERN)

RAISED PLANTING
BEDS - REFER TO
LANDSCAPE PLAN

PRECAST BLOCK VENEER ON
POURED CONC. WALL - (ASHLAR
PATTERN, TO MATCH ADJ.
RETAINING WALLS) @ DINING
DECK

PREFIN. METAL GUARDRAIL @
DINING DECK

6.5" THK. ASPHALT PRK'G.
LOT - RE: SOILS REPORT

(1) 3-WAVE BIKE RACK
(4 BIKES) - BY VICTOR
STANLEY, 'CYCLE
SENTRY COLLECTION'
(OR APPROV. EQ.)

7.5" THK. ASPHALT @DRIVE LANE

(1) INVERTED 'U'
BIKE RACK (2
BIKES) - BY
VICTOR STANELY,
'CYCLE SENTRY
COLLECTION' (OR
APPROV. EQ.)

16 ESTIMATED ON-STREET PARKING
SPACES (20' LONG x 8' WIDE SPACES)

@ 9' W.

2 SPACES

18'-0"

9'-0" 4
5
.0

0
°

9'-0"

9'
-0

"

CONC. WHEEL STOPS (TYP.14)

GARAGE ENTRY/EXIT

STRIPING

12"X12" PRECAST
CONC. SQ. BOLLARD
(5 TYP.)

8'-0" 9'-0"

@ 9'-0" WIDE

3 SPACES
27'-0"

@
 9

'-
0
" 

W
ID

E

4
 S

P
A

C
E

S
3

6
'-
0

"

5'-0" CONC. WALK

CONC. STAIRS
W/ HANDRAILS
BOTH SIDES

CONC. STAIRS W/
HANDRAILS BOTH SIDES

5'-0" W. CONC. WALK

5'-0" W. CONC. WALK

CONC. STAIRS
W/ HANDRAILS
BOTH SIDES

CONC. STAIRS W/
HANDRAILS BOTH SIDES

TRASH RECEPTACLE - BY
VICTOR STANLEY,
STREETSITES COLLECTION
(T-24) (OR APPROV. EQ.)

SITE TRIANGLE

SITE TRIANGLE

SITE TRIANGLE

FIRE HYDRANT - RE: CIVIL

FIRE
HYDRANT -
RE: CIVIL

PROPOSED FIRE
HYDRANT - RE: CIVIL

STORM SEWER
EASEMENT - RE: CIVIL

ELEC. EASEMENT - RE:
CIVIL

SNOW STORAGE -
RE: CIVIL

SNOW STORAGE
- RE: CIVIL

SNOW STORAGE - RE: CIVIL

FDC
CONNECTION

FIRE HYDRANT - RE: CIVIL

PUBLIC PLAZA

PIN MOUNTED
LETTERS ON BRICK
WALL

PRECAST STACK BLOCK
RETAINING WALLS
(ASHLAR PATTERN)

TREE GRATE

TRASH
ENCLOSURE

PRIVATE DINING PLAZA

PLANTING BED
(AT GRADE)-
REFER TO
LANDSCAPE
PLAN

PRIVATE DINING
/EVENTS BALCONY

RAISED PLANTING
BEDS - REFER TO
LANDSCAPE PLAN

WD. SLAT
BENCHES -
VICTOR STANLEY,
'CLASSIC
COLLECTION'
(C-138) (OR
APPROV. EQ.)

5 STORY
INDEPENDENT
LIVING BUILDING

5 STORY
INDEPENDENT
LIVING BUILDING

PUBLIC 6'W. CONC.
SIDEWALK - BY OTHERS
(SURFACE TREATMENT
PROPOSED TO MATCH
PUBLIC PLAZA)

PUBLIC 6' W. CONC.
SIDEWALK - BY OTHERS

10"X 10" SQ. LIGHTED
BOLLARD (9 TYP.) - RE: ELEC.

36"x36" PRECAST
CONC. SQ. PLANTERS

8'W CONC.
PEDESTRIAN WALK

CONC.  MOTORCADE

LANDSCAPING - REFER
TO LANDSCAPE PLAN

LANDSCAPING -
REFER TO
LANDSCAPE PLAN

RAISED PLANTING BEDS -
REFER TO LANDSCAPE PLAN

PRECAST STACK BLOCK RETAINING
WALLS  (ASHLAR PATTERN)

RAISED PLANTING
BEDS - REFER TO
LANDSCAPE PLAN

PRECAST BLOCK
VENEER ON 8" CMU -
(ASHLAR PATTERN,
TO MATCH ADJ.
RETAINING WALLS)
@ DINING DECK

PREFIN. METAL
GUARDRAIL @
DINING DECK

4'-6" 53'-11" 44'-7"

PRIVATE
DINING /
EVENTS ROOM

TRASH RECEPTACLE - BY
VICTOR STANLEY,
STREETSITES COLLECTION
(T-24) (OR APPROV. EQ.)

2
2

'-
8

"
1

0
'-
0

"
5

'-
1

"
6

'-
7

"
5

9
'-
4

"
6

1
'-
3

"
2

3
'-
7

"
8

'-
0

"

3
7

'-
1
0

"
1

5
8
'-
7

"

7
'-
0

"

GENERATOR

(1) 3-WAVE BIKE
RACK (4 BIKES) - BY
VICTOR STANLEY,
'CYCLE SENTRY
COLLECTION' (OR
APPROV. EQ.)

CONC. STAIRS W/
HANDRAILS BOTH
SIDES

INTERIOR
COURTYARD

PRECAST STACK BLOCK
RETAINING WALLS (ASHLAR
PATTERN)

RAISED PLANTER
- REFER TO
LANDSCAPE
PLAN

8'W. CONCRETE SIDEWALK - BY OTHERS

PROPERTY LINE

PRECAST STACK
BLOCK RETAINING
WALLS (ASHLAR
PATTERN)

1 STORY
MEMORY CARE

8'W CONCRETE
SIDEWALK - BY
OTHERS

9'-0" 23'-0"

2
3

'-
0

"

Fire hydrants shall be installed according to Denver Water
Standards. The number and location(s) of fire hydrants(s)
and fire flow as shown on this water main installation is

correct as specified by the Denver Fire Department .

Signatrure of Fire Chief or Designated Representative

Date
Signed

gpm fire
flow

4.8 Acres
Site Improvement Plan Project #SP14−30R

J
:\
2
0
1
3
.1

6
 M

O
R

N
IN

G
S

T
A

R
 A

T
 R

ID
G

E
G

A
T

E
\0

3
-E

N
T

IT
L
E

M
E

N
T

S
\S

IP
 B

O
R

D
E

R
 N

O
 D

E
N

V
E

R
 W

A
T

E
R

 B
L
O

C
K

.D
W

G
 -

--
- 

A
M

Y
 D

E
IN

E
S

RIDGEGATE SECTION 15, FILING 21, LOT 1
RidgeGate Planned Development, Planning Area 1

1234567

0
9
2
0
0
4

D
O

C
U

M
E

N
T

 
A

M
E

N
D

M
E

N
T

S

D
e

s
c
ri
p

tio
n

N
o

.
D

a
te

D
ra

w
n

 B
y
:

D
e

s
ig

n
e

d
 B

y
:

C
h

e
c
k
e
d

 B
y
:

S
h

e
e

t 
N

u
m

b
e
r:

P
ro

je
c
t 

N
u

m
b

e
r:

A
N

D
J
S

D
M

M
O

R
N

IN
G

S
T

A
R

 A
T

 R
ID

G
E

G
A

T
E

S
IT

E
 I

M
P

R
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

 P
L

A
N

M
O

R
N

IN
G

S
T

A
R

 L
T

, 
L

L
C

6
9
0
5
 S

o
u

th
 P

o
to

m
a
c
 S

t.

C
e

n
te

n
n

ia
l 
C

O
 8

0
1
1
2

P
h

o
n

e
: 

3
0
3
-7

2
8
-3

8
3
0

C
o

n
ta

c
t:

 J
e

rr
y
 B

lo
c
h

e
r

1
s
t 
S

u
b

m
itt

a
l

0
4
/2

5
/1

4

2
n

d
 S

u
b

m
itt

a
l

0
9
/1

5
/1

4

3
rd

 S
u

b
m

itt
a

l (
P

la
n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
 R

e
vi

e
w

)
0

9
/1

5
/1

4

Lantz-Boggio

Architects, P.C.
5650 DTC Pkwy. | Suite 200 |
Englewood | CO 80111

Ph: 303.773.0436 |
Fax: 303.773.8709

N
O

T
IC

E
: 

T
h

e
s
e

 d
o
c
u

m
e

n
ts

 a
re

 i
n
s
tr

u
m

e
n

ts
 o

f 
p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a

l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
, 
a

n
d

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

 c
o
n

ta
in

e
d

 t
h

e
re

in
 i
s
 i
n

c
o

m
p

le
te

 u
n

le
s
s
 u

s
e
d

 i
n

 c
o

n
ju

n
c
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 L
a

n
tz

-B
o

g
g

io
's

 i
n

te
rp

re
ta

ti
o

n
s
, 
d

e
c
is

io
n
s
, 
o

b
s
e

rv
a

ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 a
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti
o

n
s
. 
U

s
e
 o

r 
re

p
ro

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
s
e

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
ts

 i
n

 w
h

o
le

 o
r 

in
 p

a
rt

 w
it
h

o
u

t 
L

a
n
tz

-B
o

g
g

io
's

 c
o

n
s
e

n
t 
is

 i
n

 v
io

la
ti
o

n
 o

f 
c
o

m
m

o
n

 l
a

w
, 
c
o
p

y
ri

g
h

ts
, 
s
ta

tu
to

ry
 a

n
d
 o

th
e

r 
re

s
e

rv
e

d
 r

ig
h

ts
. 
R

e
fe

r 
to

 A
c
t 
1

7
U

.S
.C

.,
 p

a
r.

 5
1

1
 (

1
9

9
1
),

 w
h

ic
h

 p
re

e
m

p
ts

 s
ta

te
 a

n
d

 l
o

c
a

l 
p

u
b

lic
 r

e
c
o

rd
s
 a

c
t.
 R

e
fe

r 
to

 A
c
t 
1

7
 U

.S
.C

.,
 p

a
r 

3
0

1
 (

1
9

9
1

).

 1" = 30'-0"1
ARCHITECTURAL SITE PLAN

A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

U
R

A
L
 S

IT
E

 P
L
A

N

NORTH

1
1
 O

F
 1

5

 1" = 20'-0"2
Enlarged Plan of Northwest Plaza

 1" = 20'-0"3
Enlarged Plan of Northeast Corner

NORTH

NORTH

10/14/14 Planning Commission Meeting Packet Page 32 of 84



FD FD

UP

FD FD FD FD

FD

FD

FD

F F

G G

L L

2

2

3

3

4

4

5

5

C C

B B

8

8

6

6

7

7

11

11

N N

P P

U
U

V V

9

9

10

10

R

R

12

12

15

15

13

13

14

14

A A

D D

E E

19

19

18

18

17

17

M M

K K

O O

Q Q

S
S

T

T

I I

H H

16

16

1

1

PARKING
GARAGE

001

CORR.

003

VEST.

002

ELECT.

007

MECH.

008

CENTRAL
STORAGE

009

MAINTENANCE
OFFICE

013

CUST.

004

8'-0" 28'-0" 6'-6" 28'-0" 27'-6" 6'-6" 28'-0" 36'-0" 40'-0" 96'-0" 36'-6 3/4" 22'-0" 6'-6" 22'-0" 66'-0" 13'-6" 6'-6" 22'-0"

3
'-
6

"
1

8
'-
0

"
4

'-
0

"
6

'-
6

"
4

5
'-
6

"
2

8
'-
0

"
6

'-
0

"
6

"
2

1
'-
6

"
6

'-
6

"
2

2
'-
0

"
3

0
'-
0

"
8

'-
0

"
2

2
'-
0

"
2

'-
0

"
3

2
'-
0

"
6

'-
0

"
5

0
'-
6

"
5

'-
6

"
6

6
'-
0

"

9 1/2" 24'-9 1/2" 45'-8 1/2" 9 1/2" 233'-2 1/2" 35'-9 1/4" 9 1/2" 50'-6" 9 1/2" 65'-2 1/2" 42'-0"

9 1/2"

4'-0"

2
0

'-
8

 1
/2

"
9

 1
/2

"
2

4
'-
9

 1
/2

"
7

8
'-
1
1

"
1

5
'-
7

"
2

'-
0

"
4

8
'-
5

"
3

1
'-
7

"
3

3
'-
2

 1
/2

"
6

1
'-
2

 1
/2

"
9

 1
/2

"
3

0
'-
9

 1
/2

"
2

0
'-
0

"
1

5
'-
2

 1
/2

"
9

 1
/2

"

3
'-
6

"
1

8
'-
0

"
4

'-
0

"
6

'-
6

"
4

5
'-
6

"
2

8
'-
0

"
6

'-
0

"
6

"
2

1
'-
6

"
6

'-
6

"
2

2
'-
0

"
3

0
'-
0

"
8

'-
0

"
2

2
'-
0

"
2

'-
0

"
3

2
'-
0

"
6

'-
0

"
5

0
'-
6

"
5

'-
6

"
6

6
'-
0

"

1
1

1
'-
6

"
5

0
'-
6

"
1

0
0
'-
0

"
5

0
'-
6

"
1

 1
2
3

/2
5

6
"

7
1

'-
4

 1
3

3
/2

5
6

"

MECH.

010A

MDF

005

FIRE
ENTRY /
RISER

006

91 PARKING SPACES

LAUNDRY

010

SERVICE
ELEV.

E-1

ELEV.

E-2
STAIR

S-2

STAIR

S-1

TRASH
ENCLOSURE

012

STOR.

001B

STOR.

001C

STORAGE

001A

TOILET

011

9 10 14 15 168

3244 43 42 41 40 39 38 37 36 35 34 33838485

9190

31 30 29

5

28

1918131211

45 2786 82

6 72 3 4189

52

51

47

46

53

48

49

50

54

57

56

55

58

17

26 25 24

2120

61

60

59

62

22

23

75

76

80

81

74

71

79

78

77

72

73

68

69

70

67

64

65

66

63

8888

19 SPACES @ 9'-0" WIDE

171'-0"

3 SPACES @ 9'-0" WIDE

27'-0"

23 SPACES @ 9'-0" WIDE

207'-0"

1
8

  
S

P
A

C
E

S
 @

 9
'-
0
" 

W
ID

E

1
6

2
'-
0

"

1
8

  
S

P
A

C
E

S
 @

 9
'-
0
" 

W
ID

E

8
1

'-
0

"

9
  
S

P
A

C
E

S
 @

 9
'-
0

" 
W

ID
E

8
1

'-
0

"

6 SPACES @ 9'-0" WIDE

54'-0"

(1) 9' ADA W/ 8' AISLE

17'-0"

(3) 9' ADA SPACES W/ 8' AISLE

43'-0"

ELEV.

E-3

14 PARKING SPACES @ 9'-0" WIDE & 9'-0" AISLE

13 PARKING SPACES @ 9'-0" WIDE

12 PARKING SPACES @ 9'-0" WIDE

NORTH PARKING LOT
42 PARKING SPACES

3 PARKING
SPACES
@ 9'-0"
WIDE

Fire hydrants shall be installed according to Denver Water
Standards. The number and location(s) of fire hydrants(s)
and fire flow as shown on this water main installation is

correct as specified by the Denver Fire Department .

Signatrure of Fire Chief or Designated Representative

Date
Signed

gpm fire
flow

4.8 Acres
Site Improvement Plan Project #SP14−30R

J
:\
2
0
1
3
.1

6
 M

O
R

N
IN

G
S

T
A

R
 A

T
 R

ID
G

E
G

A
T

E
\0

3
-E

N
T

IT
L
E

M
E

N
T

S
\S

IP
 B

O
R

D
E

R
 N

O
 D

E
N

V
E

R
 W

A
T

E
R

 B
L
O

C
K

.D
W

G
 -

--
- 

A
M

Y
 D

E
IN

E
S

RIDGEGATE SECTION 15, FILING 21, LOT 1
RidgeGate Planned Development, Planning Area 1

1234567

0
9
2
0
0
4

D
O

C
U

M
E

N
T

 
A

M
E

N
D

M
E

N
T

S

D
e

s
c
ri
p

tio
n

N
o

.
D

a
te

D
ra

w
n

 B
y
:

D
e

s
ig

n
e

d
 B

y
:

C
h

e
c
k
e
d

 B
y
:

S
h

e
e

t 
N

u
m

b
e
r:

P
ro

je
c
t 

N
u

m
b

e
r:

A
N

D
J
S

D
M

M
O

R
N

IN
G

S
T

A
R

 A
T

 R
ID

G
E

G
A

T
E

S
IT

E
 I

M
P

R
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

 P
L

A
N

M
O

R
N

IN
G

S
T

A
R

 L
T

, 
L

L
C

6
9
0
5
 S

o
u

th
 P

o
to

m
a
c
 S

t.

C
e

n
te

n
n

ia
l 
C

O
 8

0
1
1
2

P
h

o
n

e
: 

3
0
3
-7

2
8
-3

8
3
0

C
o

n
ta

c
t:

 J
e

rr
y
 B

lo
c
h

e
r

1
s
t 
S

u
b

m
itt

a
l

0
4
/2

5
/1

4

2
n

d
 S

u
b

m
itt

a
l

0
9
/1

5
/1

4

3
rd

 S
u

b
m

itt
a

l (
P

la
n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
 R

e
vi

e
w

)
0

9
/1

5
/1

4

Lantz-Boggio

Architects, P.C.
5650 DTC Pkwy. | Suite 200 |
Englewood | CO 80111

Ph: 303.773.0436 |
Fax: 303.773.8709

N
O

T
IC

E
: 

T
h

e
s
e

 d
o
c
u

m
e

n
ts

 a
re

 i
n
s
tr

u
m

e
n

ts
 o

f 
p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a

l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
, 
a

n
d

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

 c
o
n

ta
in

e
d

 t
h

e
re

in
 i
s
 i
n

c
o

m
p

le
te

 u
n

le
s
s
 u

s
e
d

 i
n

 c
o

n
ju

n
c
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 L
a

n
tz

-B
o

g
g

io
's

 i
n

te
rp

re
ta

ti
o

n
s
, 
d

e
c
is

io
n
s
, 
o

b
s
e

rv
a

ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 a
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti
o

n
s
. 
U

s
e
 o

r 
re

p
ro

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
s
e

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
ts

 i
n

 w
h

o
le

 o
r 

in
 p

a
rt

 w
it
h

o
u

t 
L

a
n
tz

-B
o

g
g

io
's

 c
o

n
s
e

n
t 
is

 i
n

 v
io

la
ti
o

n
 o

f 
c
o

m
m

o
n

 l
a

w
, 
c
o
p

y
ri

g
h

ts
, 
s
ta

tu
to

ry
 a

n
d
 o

th
e

r 
re

s
e

rv
e

d
 r

ig
h

ts
. 
R

e
fe

r 
to

 A
c
t 
1

7
U

.S
.C

.,
 p

a
r.

 5
1

1
 (

1
9

9
1
),

 w
h

ic
h

 p
re

e
m

p
ts

 s
ta

te
 a

n
d

 l
o

c
a

l 
p

u
b

lic
 r

e
c
o

rd
s
 a

c
t.
 R

e
fe

r 
to

 A
c
t 
1

7
 U

.S
.C

.,
 p

a
r 

3
0

1
 (

1
9

9
1

).

NORTH

B
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

 L
E

V
E

L
 F

L
O

O
R

 P
L
A

N
1
2
 O

F
 1

5

 1" = 20'-0"2
BASEMENT LEVEL FLOOR PLAN (5962')

10/14/14 Planning Commission Meeting Packet Page 33 of 84



T.O.1ST FLOOR (5973.15')
100'-0"

T.O.1ST FLOOR (5973.15')
100'-0"

T.O. 2ND FLOOR
113'-4"

T.O. 2ND FLOOR
113'-4"

BASEMENT LEVEL (5962')
88'-10"

BASEMENT LEVEL (5962')
88'-10"

T.O. 3RD FLOOR
124'-8"

T.O. 3RD FLOOR
124'-8"

T.O. 4TH FLOOR
135'-8"

T.O. 4TH FLOOR
135'-8"

T.O. 5TH FLOOR
146'-8"

T.O. 5TH FLOOR
146'-8"

T.O. 5 STORY
168'-5"

T.O. 5 STORY
168'-5"

T.O. NW PARAPET
138'-0"

T.O. NW PARAPET
138'-0"

23458 6711 9101215 131419 18 17

AVE. GRADE PLANE
97'-0"

AVE. GRADE PLANE
97'-0"

16

AVE. ROOF HT. (MAX. 70' AVE.)
162'-6"

AVE. ROOF HT. (MAX. 70' AVE.)
162'-6"

T.O. ROOF (ASSISTED LIVING)
144'-4"

T.O. ROOF (ASSISTED LIVING)
144'-4"

1

511 502518

502 517512512 501

502

522

512

510

513

8
'-
2

"

3
'-
0

"

1
3

'-
4

"
1

1
'-
4

"
1

1
'-
0

"

2
'-
4

"

6
'-
4

"

2
'-
4

"

1
5

'-
1
0

"
5

'-
1
1

"

518 512 516 514 514 516 520515503501 501518501504 510510501

511

510

504501 510 501 ?505 504 502505527 527 524504 507528528 528 528 528 528528 528 528

T.O.1ST FLOOR (5973.15')
100'-0"

T.O.1ST FLOOR (5973.15')
100'-0"

T.O. 2ND FLOOR
113'-4"

T.O. 2ND FLOOR
113'-4"

T.O. 3RD FLOOR
124'-8"

T.O. 3RD FLOOR
124'-8"

T.O. 4TH FLOOR
135'-8"

T.O. 4TH FLOOR
135'-8"

T.O. 5TH FLOOR
146'-8"

T.O. 5TH FLOOR
146'-8"

T.O. 5 STORY
168'-5"

T.O. 5 STORY
168'-5"

FGL C BNPUV R ADEM KOQST

AVE. GRADE PLANE
97'-0"

AVE. GRADE PLANE
97'-0"

I H

AVE. ROOF HT. (MAX. 70' AVE.)
162'-6"

AVE. ROOF HT. (MAX. 70' AVE.)
162'-6"

T.O. ROOF (ASSISTED LIVING)
144'-4"

T.O. ROOF (ASSISTED LIVING)
144'-4"

3
'-
0

"
1

3
'-
4

"
1

1
'-
4

"
1

1
'-
0

"
8

'-
8

"
2

'-
4

"
1

5
'-
1
0

"
5

'-
1
1

"

501 516
510

511501 516 510 504 518512 506501 505 503504 501502 502507518

511
508502510

524 527528 528

T.O.1ST FLOOR (5973.15')
100'-0"

T.O.1ST FLOOR (5973.15')
100'-0"

T.O. 2ND FLOOR
113'-4"

T.O. 2ND FLOOR
113'-4"

BASEMENT LEVEL (5962')
88'-10"

BASEMENT LEVEL (5962')
88'-10"

T.O. 3RD FLOOR
124'-8"

T.O. 3RD FLOOR
124'-8"

T.O. 4TH FLOOR
135'-8"

T.O. 4TH FLOOR
135'-8"

T.O. 5TH FLOOR
146'-8"

T.O. 5TH FLOOR
146'-8"

T.O. 5 STORY
168'-5"

T.O. 5 STORY
168'-5"

T.O. NW PARAPET
138'-0"

T.O. NW PARAPET
138'-0"

F G LCB N P U VRA D E MK O Q S T

AVE. GRADE PLANE
97'-0"

AVE. GRADE PLANE
97'-0"

IH

AVE. ROOF HT. (MAX. 70' AVE.)
162'-6"

AVE. ROOF HT. (MAX. 70' AVE.)
162'-6"

T.O. SW PARAPET
137'-0"

T.O. SW PARAPET
137'-0"

5
'-
1
1

"
1

5
'-
1
0

"
8

'-
8

"

1
'-
0

"
1

'-
4

"

1
1

'-
0

"
1

1
'-
4

"
1

3
'-
4

"

3
'-
0

"

8
'-
2

"

520

510 511 516
503 502

512 501 512516

508 508

501

502508521506

507507 514

508510

?

513

518

516

502504 512

510 501 504 510 514 518 510 502

508 505 514 510

502

518

518

515 512527 505 501 512 514514528528528 528 528528 528 528 528528 528

T.O.1ST FLOOR (5973.15')
100'-0"

T.O.1ST FLOOR (5973.15')
100'-0"

T.O. 2ND FLOOR
113'-4"

T.O. 2ND FLOOR
113'-4"

BASEMENT LEVEL (5962')
88'-10"

BASEMENT LEVEL (5962')
88'-10"

T.O. 3RD FLOOR
124'-8"

T.O. 3RD FLOOR
124'-8"

T.O. 4TH FLOOR
135'-8"

T.O. 4TH FLOOR
135'-8"

T.O. 5TH FLOOR
146'-8"

T.O. 5TH FLOOR
146'-8"

T.O. 5 STORY
168'-5"

T.O. 5 STORY
168'-5"

2 3 4 5 86 7 119 10 12 1513 14 191817

AVE. GRADE PLANE
97'-0"

AVE. GRADE PLANE
97'-0"

16

AVE. ROOF HT. (MAX. 70' AVE.)
162'-6"

AVE. ROOF HT. (MAX. 70' AVE.)
162'-6"

T.O. ROOF (ASSISTED LIVING)
144'-4"

1

T.O. SW PARAPET
137'-0"

5
'-
1
1

"
1

5
'-
1
0

"
1

1
'-
0

"
1

1
'-
0

"
1

1
'-
4

"
1

3
'-
4

"
3

'-
0

"
8

'-
2

"

503 501 505 504 501 512

511 508

502

509

504 503504 501

521 506

506

510

518507 514522 502 502505

508 510

516 516503 510501 524 518 512 518503524505527 528528 528

Fire hydrants shall be installed according to Denver Water
Standards. The number and location(s) of fire hydrants(s)
and fire flow as shown on this water main installation is

correct as specified by the Denver Fire Department .

Signatrure of Fire Chief or Designated Representative

Date
Signed

gpm fire
flow

4.8 Acres
Site Improvement Plan Project #SP14−30R

J
:\
2
0
1
3
.1

6
 M

O
R

N
IN

G
S

T
A

R
 A

T
 R

ID
G

E
G

A
T

E
\0

3
-E

N
T

IT
L
E

M
E

N
T

S
\S

IP
 B

O
R

D
E

R
 N

O
 D

E
N

V
E

R
 W

A
T

E
R

 B
L
O

C
K

.D
W

G
 -

--
- 

A
M

Y
 D

E
IN

E
S

RIDGEGATE SECTION 15, FILING 21, LOT 1
RidgeGate Planned Development, Planning Area 1

1234567

0
9
2
0
0
4

D
O

C
U

M
E

N
T

 
A

M
E

N
D

M
E

N
T

S

D
e

s
c
ri
p

tio
n

N
o

.
D

a
te

D
ra

w
n

 B
y
:

D
e

s
ig

n
e

d
 B

y
:

C
h

e
c
k
e
d

 B
y
:

S
h

e
e

t 
N

u
m

b
e
r:

P
ro

je
c
t 

N
u

m
b

e
r:

A
N

D
J
S

D
M

M
O

R
N

IN
G

S
T

A
R

 A
T

 R
ID

G
E

G
A

T
E

S
IT

E
 I

M
P

R
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

 P
L

A
N

M
O

R
N

IN
G

S
T

A
R

 L
T

, 
L

L
C

6
9
0
5
 S

o
u

th
 P

o
to

m
a
c
 S

t.

C
e

n
te

n
n

ia
l 
C

O
 8

0
1
1
2

P
h

o
n

e
: 

3
0
3
-7

2
8
-3

8
3
0

C
o

n
ta

c
t:

 J
e

rr
y
 B

lo
c
h

e
r

1
s
t 
S

u
b

m
itt

a
l

0
4
/2

5
/1

4

2
n

d
 S

u
b

m
itt

a
l

0
9
/1

5
/1

4

3
rd

 S
u

b
m

itt
a

l (
P

la
n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
 R

e
vi

e
w

)
0

9
/1

5
/1

4

Lantz-Boggio

Architects, P.C.
5650 DTC Pkwy. | Suite 200 |
Englewood | CO 80111

Ph: 303.773.0436 |
Fax: 303.773.8709

N
O

T
IC

E
: 

T
h

e
s
e

 d
o
c
u

m
e

n
ts

 a
re

 i
n
s
tr

u
m

e
n

ts
 o

f 
p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a

l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
, 
a

n
d

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

 c
o
n

ta
in

e
d

 t
h

e
re

in
 i
s
 i
n

c
o

m
p

le
te

 u
n

le
s
s
 u

s
e
d

 i
n

 c
o

n
ju

n
c
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 L
a

n
tz

-B
o

g
g

io
's

 i
n

te
rp

re
ta

ti
o

n
s
, 
d

e
c
is

io
n
s
, 
o

b
s
e

rv
a

ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 a
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti
o

n
s
. 
U

s
e
 o

r 
re

p
ro

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
s
e

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
ts

 i
n

 w
h

o
le

 o
r 

in
 p

a
rt

 w
it
h

o
u

t 
L

a
n
tz

-B
o

g
g

io
's

 c
o

n
s
e

n
t 
is

 i
n

 v
io

la
ti
o

n
 o

f 
c
o

m
m

o
n

 l
a

w
, 
c
o
p

y
ri

g
h

ts
, 
s
ta

tu
to

ry
 a

n
d
 o

th
e

r 
re

s
e

rv
e

d
 r

ig
h

ts
. 
R

e
fe

r 
to

 A
c
t 
1

7
U

.S
.C

.,
 p

a
r.

 5
1

1
 (

1
9

9
1
),

 w
h

ic
h

 p
re

e
m

p
ts

 s
ta

te
 a

n
d

 l
o

c
a

l 
p

u
b

lic
 r

e
c
o

rd
s
 a

c
t.
 R

e
fe

r 
to

 A
c
t 
1

7
 U

.S
.C

.,
 p

a
r 

3
0

1
 (

1
9

9
1

).

E
X

T
E

R
IO

R
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 E

L
E

V
A

T
IO

N
S

KEYNOTE LEGEND

501 BRICK - INTERSTATE BRICK 'IRONSTONE'

502 STUCCO 1 - B.M. 'REVERE PEWTER' (HC-172)

503 STUCCO 2 - B.M. 'LENOX TAN' (HC-44)

504 STUCCO 3 - B.M. 'TEXAS LEATHER' (AC-3)

505 STUCCO 4 - ACCENT COLOR, S.W..  'GINGERY'  (6363)

506 STUCCO TRIM - B.M. 'REVERE PEWTER' (HC-172)

507 BRICK SOLDIER COURSE - INTERSTATE BRICK ACCENT

508 PRE-FIN. METAL COPING - DREXEL METAL 'SANDSTONE'

509 WOOD FASCIA - B.M. 'REVERE PEWTER' (HC-172)

510 METAL  ROOFING - DREXEL METALS 'COLONIAL RED'

511 ASPHALT SHINGLE - GAF TIMBERLINE 'WEATHERED WOOD'

512 METAL LOUVER - PAINTED TO MATCH ADJ. SURFACE

513 CANVAS AWNING - SUNBRELLA FABRICS 'SUNFLOWER YELLOW'

514 METAL BALCONY RAILING   (COLONIAL RED)

515 H.M. DOOR - TO MATCH ADJACENT STUCCO

516 ANOD. ALUMINUM STOREFRONT

517 COMMERCIAL GARAGE DOOR

518 VINYL WINDOW

520 BLOCK RETAINING WALL - BASALITE, ASHLAR PATTERN, TAN BLEND

521 STUCCO CORNICE - B.M. 'REVERE PEWTER' (HC-172)

522 ACCENT COLUMN - DREXEL METALS 'COLONIAL RED'

524 BRICK ROWLOCK SILL - INTERSTATE BRICK ACCENT

527 PRE-CAST CONCRETE WATERTABLE

528 EXTERIOR LIGHT FIXTURE;  RE: ELECTRICAL

1
3
 O

F
 1

5

 1" = 20'-0"1
NORTH ELEVATION

 1" = 20'-0"4
EAST ELEVATION

 1" = 20'-0"2
WEST ELEVATION

 1" = 20'-0"3
SOUTH ELEVATION

10/14/14 Planning Commission Meeting Packet Page 34 of 84



T.O.1ST FLOOR (5973.15')
100'-0"

T.O.1ST FLOOR (5973.15')
100'-0"

T.O. 2ND FLOOR
113'-4"

T.O. 2ND FLOOR
113'-4"

BASEMENT LEVEL (5962')
88'-10"

BASEMENT LEVEL (5962')
88'-10"

T.O. 3RD FLOOR
124'-8"

T.O. 3RD FLOOR
124'-8"

T.O. 4TH FLOOR
135'-8"

T.O. 4TH FLOOR
135'-8"

T.O. 5TH FLOOR
146'-8"

T.O. 5TH FLOOR
146'-8"

T.O. 5 STORY
168'-5"

T.O. 5 STORY
168'-5"

AVE. GRADE PLANE
97'-0"

AVE. GRADE PLANE
97'-0"

235'-7" 163'-4"

AVE. ROOF HT. (MAX. 70' AVE.)
162'-6"

AVE. ROOF HT. (MAX. 70' AVE.)
162'-6"

T.O. SW PARAPET
137'-0"

T.O.1ST FLOOR (5973.15')
100'-0" T.O.1ST FLOOR (5973.15')

100'-0"

T.O. 2ND FLOOR
113'-4"

T.O. 2ND FLOOR
113'-4"

BASEMENT LEVEL (5962')
88'-10"

BASEMENT LEVEL (5962')
88'-10"

T.O. 3RD FLOOR
124'-8"

T.O. 3RD FLOOR
124'-8"

T.O. 4TH FLOOR
135'-8"

T.O. 4TH FLOOR
135'-8"

T.O. 5TH FLOOR
146'-8"

T.O. 5TH FLOOR
146'-8"

T.O. 5 STORY
168'-5"

T.O. 5 STORY
168'-5"

AVE. GRADE PLANE
97'-0"

137'-0" 28'-6"
89'-8"

AVE. ROOF HT. (MAX. 70' AVE.)
162'-6"

AVE. ROOF HT. (MAX. 70' AVE.)
162'-6"

T.O. ROOF (ASSISTED LIVING)
144'-4"

T.O.1ST FLOOR (5973.15')
100'-0"

T.O.1ST FLOOR (5973.15')
100'-0"

T.O. 2ND FLOOR
113'-4"

T.O. 2ND FLOOR
113'-4"

BASEMENT LEVEL (5962')
88'-10"

BASEMENT LEVEL (5962')
88'-10"

T.O. 3RD FLOOR
124'-8"

T.O. 3RD FLOOR
124'-8"

T.O. 4TH FLOOR
135'-8"

T.O. 4TH FLOOR
135'-8"

T.O. 5TH FLOOR
146'-8"

T.O. 5TH FLOOR
146'-8"

T.O. 5 STORY
168'-5"

T.O. 5 STORY
168'-5"

AVE. GRADE PLANE
97'-0"

AVE. GRADE PLANE
97'-0"

149'-7" 128'-0"

277'-7"AVE. ROOF HT. (MAX. 70' AVE.)
162'-6"

AVE. ROOF HT. (MAX. 70' AVE.)
162'-6"

SECTION @ NORTH PARKING LOT THRU VILLAGE WAY

SECTION @ ASSISTED LIVING BUILDING
THRU RIDGEGATE PARKWAY

SECTION @ ASSISTED LIVING BUILDING
THRU RIDGEGATE PARKWAY

SECTION @ 3 STORY INDEPENDENT LIVING
BUILDING THRU RIDGEGATE PARKWAY

Fire hydrants shall be installed according to Denver Water
Standards. The number and location(s) of fire hydrants(s)
and fire flow as shown on this water main installation is

correct as specified by the Denver Fire Department .

Signatrure of Fire Chief or Designated Representative

Date
Signed

gpm fire
flow

4.8 Acres
Site Improvement Plan Project #SP14−30R

J
:\
2
0
1
3
.1

6
 M

O
R

N
IN

G
S

T
A

R
 A

T
 R

ID
G

E
G

A
T

E
\0

3
-E

N
T

IT
L
E

M
E

N
T

S
\S

IP
 B

O
R

D
E

R
 N

O
 D

E
N

V
E

R
 W

A
T

E
R

 B
L
O

C
K

.D
W

G
 -

--
- 

A
M

Y
 D

E
IN

E
S

RIDGEGATE SECTION 15, FILING 21, LOT 1
RidgeGate Planned Development, Planning Area 1

1234567

0
9
2
0
0
4

D
O

C
U

M
E

N
T

 
A

M
E

N
D

M
E

N
T

S

D
e

s
c
ri
p

tio
n

N
o

.
D

a
te

D
ra

w
n

 B
y
:

D
e

s
ig

n
e

d
 B

y
:

C
h

e
c
k
e
d

 B
y
:

S
h

e
e

t 
N

u
m

b
e
r:

P
ro

je
c
t 

N
u

m
b

e
r:

A
N

D
J
S

D
M

M
O

R
N

IN
G

S
T

A
R

 A
T

 R
ID

G
E

G
A

T
E

S
IT

E
 I

M
P

R
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

 P
L

A
N

M
O

R
N

IN
G

S
T

A
R

 L
T

, 
L

L
C

6
9
0
5
 S

o
u

th
 P

o
to

m
a
c
 S

t.

C
e

n
te

n
n

ia
l 
C

O
 8

0
1
1
2

P
h

o
n

e
: 

3
0
3
-7

2
8
-3

8
3
0

C
o

n
ta

c
t:

 J
e

rr
y
 B

lo
c
h

e
r

1
s
t 
S

u
b

m
itt

a
l

0
4
/2

5
/1

4

2
n

d
 S

u
b

m
itt

a
l

0
9
/1

5
/1

4

3
rd

 S
u

b
m

itt
a

l (
P

la
n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
 R

e
vi

e
w

)
0

9
/1

5
/1

4

Lantz-Boggio

Architects, P.C.
5650 DTC Pkwy. | Suite 200 |
Englewood | CO 80111

Ph: 303.773.0436 |
Fax: 303.773.8709

N
O

T
IC

E
: 

T
h

e
s
e

 d
o
c
u

m
e

n
ts

 a
re

 i
n
s
tr

u
m

e
n

ts
 o

f 
p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a

l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
, 
a

n
d

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

 c
o
n

ta
in

e
d

 t
h

e
re

in
 i
s
 i
n

c
o

m
p

le
te

 u
n

le
s
s
 u

s
e
d

 i
n

 c
o

n
ju

n
c
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 L
a

n
tz

-B
o

g
g

io
's

 i
n

te
rp

re
ta

ti
o

n
s
, 
d

e
c
is

io
n
s
, 
o

b
s
e

rv
a

ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 a
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti
o

n
s
. 
U

s
e
 o

r 
re

p
ro

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
s
e

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
ts

 i
n

 w
h

o
le

 o
r 

in
 p

a
rt

 w
it
h

o
u

t 
L

a
n
tz

-B
o

g
g

io
's

 c
o

n
s
e

n
t 
is

 i
n

 v
io

la
ti
o

n
 o

f 
c
o

m
m

o
n

 l
a

w
, 
c
o
p

y
ri

g
h

ts
, 
s
ta

tu
to

ry
 a

n
d
 o

th
e

r 
re

s
e

rv
e

d
 r

ig
h

ts
. 
R

e
fe

r 
to

 A
c
t 
1

7
U

.S
.C

.,
 p

a
r.

 5
1

1
 (

1
9

9
1
),

 w
h

ic
h

 p
re

e
m

p
ts

 s
ta

te
 a

n
d

 l
o

c
a

l 
p

u
b

lic
 r

e
c
o

rd
s
 a

c
t.
 R

e
fe

r 
to

 A
c
t 
1

7
 U

.S
.C

.,
 p

a
r 

3
0

1
 (

1
9

9
1

).

 1" = 30'-0"B
BUILDING SITE SECTION B

 1" = 30'-0"C
BUILDING SITE SECTION C

 1" = 30'-0"A
BUILDING SITE SECTION A

S
IT

E
 C

R
O

S
S

 S
E

C
T

IO
N

S
1
4
 O

F
 1

5

 1/8" = 1'-0"D
Site Sections

10/14/14 Planning Commission Meeting Packet Page 35 of 84



PRECAST BLOCK VENEER (TO
MATCH ADJ. RETAINING WALLS)
ON 8" CMU - PT. INT. SIDE

PAINTED MTL. GATES
- COLOR TO MATCH
METAL ACCENTS ON
BLDG.

H.M. DOOR - PT. TO
MATCH ADJ. STONE

9
'-
5

"
2

'-
8

"
7

'-
7

 1
/2

"

14'-2 1/2"

DUMPSTERS -
BY OWNER

BUILDING

GENERATOR
PAD

1
8

'-
9

 1
/4

"

30'-6"

5
'-
0

"
6

'-
1
0

"
4

'-
1
1

"

5'-0" 18'-6" 5'-0"

6" THK. CONC.
WITHIN ENCLOSURE
- RE: SOILS REPORT

6" DIA. CONC.
BOLLARDS

6" DIA. CONC.
BOLLARDS

BASEMENT LEVEL (5962')
88'-10"

PRECAST (ASHLAR
PATTERN, TO MATCH
ADJ. RETAINING
WALLS) BLOCK
VENEER ON 8" CMU -
PAINT INTERIOR FACE

PAINTED MTL.
GATES - PAINT
TO MATCH
STEEL ACCENTS
ON BUILDING

PRECAST CAP

STAIR TOWER BEYOND

0
"

8
'-
0

"

2
 1

/2
"

8
'-
2

 1
/2

"

BASEMENT LEVEL (5962')
88'-10"

PRECAST CAP

PRECAST (ASHLAR
PATTERN, TO MATCH
ADJ. RETAINING
WALLS) BLOCK VENEER
ON 8" CMU - PAINT
INTERIOR FACE

WALL OF STAIR TOWER

BASEMENT LEVEL (5962')
88'-10"

PRECAST (ASHLAR
PATTERN, TO MATCH
ADJ. RETAINING
WALLS) BLOCK
VENEER ON 8" CMU -
PAINT INTERIOR FACE

PRECAST CAP

STAIR TOWER BEYOND

PRECAST (ASHLAR
PATTERN) STACKED
BLOCK RETAINING
WALLS - REFER TO SITE
PLAN

H.M. DOOR - PT. TO
MATCH ADJ. SURF.

PRECAST CAP

Fire hydrants shall be installed according to Denver Water
Standards. The number and location(s) of fire hydrants(s)
and fire flow as shown on this water main installation is

correct as specified by the Denver Fire Department .

Signatrure of Fire Chief or Designated Representative

Date
Signed

gpm fire
flow

4.8 Acres
Site Improvement Plan Project #SP14−30R

J
:\
2
0
1
3
.1

6
 M

O
R

N
IN

G
S

T
A

R
 A

T
 R

ID
G

E
G

A
T

E
\0

3
-E

N
T

IT
L
E

M
E

N
T

S
\S

IP
 B

O
R

D
E

R
 N

O
 D

E
N

V
E

R
 W

A
T

E
R

 B
L
O

C
K

.D
W

G
 -

--
- 

A
M

Y
 D

E
IN

E
S

RIDGEGATE SECTION 15, FILING 21, LOT 1
RidgeGate Planned Development, Planning Area 1

1234567

0
9
2
0
0
4

D
O

C
U

M
E

N
T

 
A

M
E

N
D

M
E

N
T

S

D
e

s
c
ri
p

tio
n

N
o

.
D

a
te

D
ra

w
n

 B
y
:

D
e

s
ig

n
e

d
 B

y
:

C
h

e
c
k
e
d

 B
y
:

S
h

e
e

t 
N

u
m

b
e
r:

P
ro

je
c
t 

N
u

m
b

e
r:

A
N

D
J
S

D
M

M
O

R
N

IN
G

S
T

A
R

 A
T

 R
ID

G
E

G
A

T
E

S
IT

E
 I

M
P

R
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

 P
L

A
N

M
O

R
N

IN
G

S
T

A
R

 L
T

, 
L

L
C

6
9
0
5
 S

o
u

th
 P

o
to

m
a
c
 S

t.

C
e

n
te

n
n

ia
l 
C

O
 8

0
1
1
2

P
h

o
n

e
: 

3
0
3
-7

2
8
-3

8
3
0

C
o

n
ta

c
t:

 J
e

rr
y
 B

lo
c
h

e
r

1
s
t 
S

u
b

m
itt

a
l

0
4
/2

5
/1

4

2
n

d
 S

u
b

m
itt

a
l

0
9
/1

5
/1

4

3
rd

 S
u

b
m

itt
a

l (
P

la
n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
 R

e
vi

e
w

)
0

9
/1

5
/1

4

Lantz-Boggio

Architects, P.C.
5650 DTC Pkwy. | Suite 200 |
Englewood | CO 80111

Ph: 303.773.0436 |
Fax: 303.773.8709

N
O

T
IC

E
: 

T
h

e
s
e

 d
o
c
u

m
e

n
ts

 a
re

 i
n
s
tr

u
m

e
n

ts
 o

f 
p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a

l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
, 
a

n
d

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

 c
o
n

ta
in

e
d

 t
h

e
re

in
 i
s
 i
n

c
o

m
p

le
te

 u
n

le
s
s
 u

s
e
d

 i
n

 c
o

n
ju

n
c
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 L
a

n
tz

-B
o

g
g

io
's

 i
n

te
rp

re
ta

ti
o

n
s
, 
d

e
c
is

io
n
s
, 
o

b
s
e

rv
a

ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 a
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti
o

n
s
. 
U

s
e
 o

r 
re

p
ro

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
s
e

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
ts

 i
n

 w
h

o
le

 o
r 

in
 p

a
rt

 w
it
h

o
u

t 
L

a
n
tz

-B
o

g
g

io
's

 c
o

n
s
e

n
t 
is

 i
n

 v
io

la
ti
o

n
 o

f 
c
o

m
m

o
n

 l
a

w
, 
c
o
p

y
ri

g
h

ts
, 
s
ta

tu
to

ry
 a

n
d
 o

th
e

r 
re

s
e

rv
e

d
 r

ig
h

ts
. 
R

e
fe

r 
to

 A
c
t 
1

7
U

.S
.C

.,
 p

a
r.

 5
1

1
 (

1
9

9
1
),

 w
h

ic
h

 p
re

e
m

p
ts

 s
ta

te
 a

n
d

 l
o

c
a

l 
p

u
b

lic
 r

e
c
o

rd
s
 a

c
t.
 R

e
fe

r 
to

 A
c
t 
1

7
 U

.S
.C

.,
 p

a
r 

3
0

1
 (

1
9

9
1

).

 1/4" = 1'-0"1
Trash Enclosure Plan

 1/4" = 1'-0"2
Trash Enclosure - Front Elevation

 1/4" = 1'-0"4
Trash Enclosure - Back Elevation

1
5
 O

F
 1

5
T

R
A

S
H

 E
N

C
L
O

S
U

R
E

 D
E

T
A

IL
S

 1/4" = 1'-0"3
Trash Enclosure Side

10/14/14 Planning Commission Meeting Packet Page 36 of 84



T.O.1ST FLOOR (5973.15')
100'-0"

T.O.1ST FLOOR (5973.15')
100'-0"

T.O. 2ND FLOOR
113'-4"

T.O. 2ND FLOOR
113'-4"

BASEMENT LEVEL (5962')
88'-10"

BASEMENT LEVEL (5962')
88'-10"

T.O. 3RD FLOOR
124'-8"

T.O. 3RD FLOOR
124'-8"

T.O. 4TH FLOOR
135'-8"

T.O. 4TH FLOOR
135'-8"

T.O. 5TH FLOOR
146'-8"

T.O. 5TH FLOOR
146'-8"

T.O. 5 STORY
168'-5"

T.O. 5 STORY
168'-5"

T.O. NW PARAPET
138'-0"

T.O. NW PARAPET
138'-0"

23458 6711 9101215 131419 18 17

AVE. GRADE PLANE
97'-0"

AVE. GRADE PLANE
97'-0"

16

AVE. ROOF HT. (MAX. 70' AVE.)
162'-6"

AVE. ROOF HT. (MAX. 70' AVE.)
162'-6"

T.O. ROOF (ASSISTED LIVING)
144'-4"

T.O. ROOF (ASSISTED LIVING)
144'-4"

1

511 502518

502 517512512 501

502

522

512

510

513

8
'-
2
"

3
'-
0
"

1
3
'-
4
"

1
1
'-
4
"

1
1
'-
0
"

2
'-
4
"

6
'-
4
"

2
'-
4
"

1
5
'-
1
0
"

5
'-
1
1
"

518 512 516 514 514 516 520515503501 501518501504 510510501

511

510

504501 510 501 ?505 504 502505527 527 524504 507528528 528 528 528 528528 528 528

T.O.1ST FLOOR (5973.15')
100'-0"

T.O.1ST FLOOR (5973.15')
100'-0"

T.O. 2ND FLOOR
113'-4"

T.O. 2ND FLOOR
113'-4"

T.O. 3RD FLOOR
124'-8"

T.O. 3RD FLOOR
124'-8"

T.O. 4TH FLOOR
135'-8"

T.O. 4TH FLOOR
135'-8"

T.O. 5TH FLOOR
146'-8"

T.O. 5TH FLOOR
146'-8"

T.O. 5 STORY
168'-5"

T.O. 5 STORY
168'-5"

FGL C BNPUV R ADEM KOQST

AVE. GRADE PLANE
97'-0"

AVE. GRADE PLANE
97'-0"

I H

AVE. ROOF HT. (MAX. 70' AVE.)
162'-6"

AVE. ROOF HT. (MAX. 70' AVE.)
162'-6"

T.O. ROOF (ASSISTED LIVING)
144'-4"

T.O. ROOF (ASSISTED LIVING)
144'-4"

3
'-
0
"

1
3
'-
4
"

1
1
'-
4
"

1
1
'-
0
"

8
'-
8
"
2
'-
4
"

1
5
'-
1
0
"

5
'-
1
1
"

501 516
510

511501 516 510 504 518512 506501 505 503504 501502 502507518

511
508502510

524 527528 528

T.O.1ST FLOOR (5973.15')
100'-0"

T.O.1ST FLOOR (5973.15')
100'-0"

T.O. 2ND FLOOR
113'-4"

T.O. 2ND FLOOR
113'-4"

BASEMENT LEVEL (5962')
88'-10"

BASEMENT LEVEL (5962')
88'-10"

T.O. 3RD FLOOR
124'-8"

T.O. 3RD FLOOR
124'-8"

T.O. 4TH FLOOR
135'-8"

T.O. 4TH FLOOR
135'-8"

T.O. 5TH FLOOR
146'-8"

T.O. 5TH FLOOR
146'-8"

T.O. 5 STORY
168'-5"

T.O. 5 STORY
168'-5"

T.O. NW PARAPET
138'-0"

T.O. NW PARAPET
138'-0"

F G LCB N P U VRA D E MK O Q S T

AVE. GRADE PLANE
97'-0"

AVE. GRADE PLANE
97'-0"

IH

AVE. ROOF HT. (MAX. 70' AVE.)
162'-6"

AVE. ROOF HT. (MAX. 70' AVE.)
162'-6"

T.O. SW PARAPET
137'-0"

T.O. SW PARAPET
137'-0"

5
'-
1
1
"

1
5
'-
1
0
"

8
'-
8
"

1
'-
0
"

1
'-
4
"

1
1
'-
0
"

1
1
'-
4
"

1
3
'-
4
"

3
'-
0
"

8
'-
2
"

520

510 511 516
503 502

512 501 512516

508 508

501

502508521506

507507 514

508510

?

513

518

516

502504 512

510 501 504 510 514 518 510 502

508 505 514 510

502

518

518

515 512527 505 501 512 514514528528528 528 528528 528 528 528528 528

T.O.1ST FLOOR (5973.15')
100'-0"

T.O.1ST FLOOR (5973.15')
100'-0"

T.O. 2ND FLOOR
113'-4"

T.O. 2ND FLOOR
113'-4"

BASEMENT LEVEL (5962')
88'-10"

BASEMENT LEVEL (5962')
88'-10"

T.O. 3RD FLOOR
124'-8"

T.O. 3RD FLOOR
124'-8"

T.O. 4TH FLOOR
135'-8"

T.O. 4TH FLOOR
135'-8"

T.O. 5TH FLOOR
146'-8"

T.O. 5TH FLOOR
146'-8"

T.O. 5 STORY
168'-5"

T.O. 5 STORY
168'-5"

2 3 4 5 86 7 119 10 12 1513 14 191817

AVE. GRADE PLANE
97'-0"

AVE. GRADE PLANE
97'-0"

16

AVE. ROOF HT. (MAX. 70' AVE.)
162'-6"

AVE. ROOF HT. (MAX. 70' AVE.)
162'-6"

T.O. ROOF (ASSISTED LIVING)
144'-4"

1

T.O. SW PARAPET
137'-0"

5
'-
1
1
"

1
5
'-
1
0
"

1
1
'-
0
"

1
1
'-
0
"

1
1
'-
4
"

1
3
'-
4
"

3
'-
0
"

8
'-
2
"

503 501 505 504 501 512

511 508

502

509

504 503504 501

521 506

506

510

518507 514522 502 502505

508 510

516 516503 510501 524 518 512 518503524505527 528528 528

Fire hydrants shall be installed according to Denver Water
Standards. The number and location(s) of fire hydrants(s)
and fire flow as shown on this water main installation is

correct as specified by the Denver Fire Department .

Signatrure of Fire Chief or Designated Representative

Date
Signed

gpm fire
flow

4.8 Acres
Site Improvement Plan Project #SP14−30R

J
:\
2

0
1
3

.1
6

 M
O

R
N

IN
G

S
T

A
R

 A
T

 R
ID

G
E

G
A

T
E

\0
3

-E
N

T
IT

L
E

M
E

N
T

S
\S

IP
 B

O
R

D
E

R
 N

O
 D

E
N

V
E

R
 W

A
T

E
R

 B
L
O

C
K

.D
W

G
 -

--
- 

A
M

Y
 D

E
IN

E
S

RIDGEGATE SECTION 15, FILING 21, LOT 1
RidgeGate Planned Development, Planning Area 1

1234567

0
9
2
0
0
4

D
O

C
U

M
E

N
T

 
A

M
E

N
D

M
E

N
T

S

D
e

s
c
ri

p
ti
o

n
N

o
.

D
a

te

D
ra

w
n

 B
y
:

D
e
s
ig

n
e
d

 B
y
:

C
h

e
c
k
e
d

 B
y
:

S
h

e
e
t 

N
u

m
b

e
r:

P
ro

je
c
t 

N
u

m
b

e
r:

A
N

D
J
S

D
M

M
O

R
N

IN
G

S
T

A
R

 A
T

 R
ID

G
E

G
A

T
E

S
IT

E
 I

M
P

R
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

 P
L

A
N

M
O

R
N

IN
G

S
T

A
R

 L
T

, 
L

L
C

6
9
0
5
 S

o
u

th
 P

o
to

m
a
c
 S

t.

C
e
n

te
n

n
ia

l 
C

O
 8

0
1
1
2

P
h

o
n

e
: 

3
0
3
-7

2
8
-3

8
3
0

C
o

n
ta

c
t:

 J
e
rr

y
 B

lo
c
h

e
r

1
s
t 
S

u
b

m
it
ta

l
0
4
/2

5
/1

4

2
n

d
 S

u
b

m
it
ta

l
0

9
/1

5
/1

4

3
rd

 S
u

b
m

it
ta

l 
(P

la
n

n
in

g
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 R

e
vi

e
w

)
0

9
/1

5
/1

4

Lantz-Boggio

Architects, P.C.
5650 DTC Pkwy. | Suite 200 |
Englewood | CO 80111

Ph: 303.773.0436 |
Fax: 303.773.8709

N
O

T
IC

E
: 

T
h
e
s
e
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

 i
n
s
tr

u
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 

p
ro

fe
s
si

o
n
a
l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
, 

a
n
d
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 c

o
n
ta

in
e
d
 t
h
e
re

in
 i
s
 i
n
c
o
m

p
le

te
 u

n
le

s
s
 u

s
e
d
 i
n
 c

o
n
ju

n
c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 L

a
n
tz

-B
o
g
g
io

's
 i
n
te

rp
re

ta
ti
o
n
s
, 
d
e
c
is

io
n
s
, 

o
b
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 a

d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
s
. 

U
s
e
 o

r 
re

p
ro

d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
s
e
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 w

h
o
le

 o
r 

in
 p

a
rt

 w
it
h
o
u
t 

L
a
n
tz

-B
o
g
g
io

's
 c

o
n
s
e
n
t 

is
 i
n
 v

io
la

ti
o
n
 o

f 
c
o
m

m
o
n
 l
a
w

, 
co

p
y
ri

g
h
ts

, 
s
ta

tu
to

ry
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

re
s
e
rv

e
d
 r

ig
h
ts

. 
R

e
fe

r 
to

 A
c
t 

1
7

U
.S

.C
.,

 p
a
r.

 5
1
1
 (

1
9
9
1
),

 w
h
ic

h
 p

re
e
m

p
ts

 s
ta

te
 a

n
d
 l
o
ca

l 
p
u
b
lic

 r
e
c
o
rd

s
 a

c
t.
 R

e
fe

r 
to

 A
c
t 

1
7
 U

.S
.C

.,
 p

a
r 

3
0
1
 (

1
9
9
1
).

E
X

T
E

R
IO

R
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 E

L
E

V
A

T
IO

N
S

KEYNOTE LEGEND

501 BRICK - INTERSTATE BRICK 'IRONSTONE'

502 STUCCO 1 - B.M. 'REVERE PEWTER' (HC-172)

503 STUCCO 2 - B.M. 'LENOX TAN' (HC-44)

504 STUCCO 3 - B.M. 'TEXAS LEATHER' (AC-3)

505 STUCCO 4 - ACCENT COLOR, S.W..  'GINGERY'  (6363)

506 STUCCO TRIM - B.M. 'REVERE PEWTER' (HC-172)

507 BRICK SOLDIER COURSE - INTERSTATE BRICK ACCENT

508 PRE-FIN. METAL COPING - DREXEL METAL 'SANDSTONE'

509 WOOD FASCIA - B.M. 'REVERE PEWTER' (HC-172)

510 METAL  ROOFING - DREXEL METALS 'COLONIAL RED'

511 ASPHALT SHINGLE - GAF TIMBERLINE 'WEATHERED WOOD'

512 METAL LOUVER - PAINTED TO MATCH ADJ. SURFACE

513 CANVAS AWNING - SUNBRELLA FABRICS 'SUNFLOWER YELLOW'

514 METAL BALCONY RAILING   (COLONIAL RED)

515 H.M. DOOR - TO MATCH ADJACENT STUCCO

516 ANOD. ALUMINUM STOREFRONT

517 COMMERCIAL GARAGE DOOR

518 VINYL WINDOW

520 BLOCK RETAINING WALL - BASALITE, ASHLAR PATTERN, TAN BLEND

521 STUCCO CORNICE - B.M. 'REVERE PEWTER' (HC-172)

522 ACCENT COLUMN - DREXEL METALS 'COLONIAL RED'

524 BRICK ROWLOCK SILL - INTERSTATE BRICK ACCENT

527 PRE-CAST CONCRETE WATERTABLE

528 EXTERIOR LIGHT FIXTURE;  RE: ELECTRICAL

1
3

 O
F

 1
5

 1" = 20'-0"
1

NORTH ELEVATION

 1" = 20'-0"
4

EAST ELEVATION

 1" = 20'-0"
2

WEST ELEVATION

 1" = 20'-0"
3

SOUTH ELEVATION

10/14/14 Planning Commission Meeting Packet Page 37 of 84



10/14/14 Planning Commission Meeting Packet Page 38 of 84



10/14/14 Planning Commission Meeting Packet Page 39 of 84



10/14/14 Planning Commission Meeting Packet Page 40 of 84



10/14/14 Planning Commission Meeting Packet Page 41 of 84



10/14/14 Planning Commission Meeting Packet Page 42 of 84



10/14/14 Planning Commission Meeting Packet Page 43 of 84



10/14/14 Planning Commission Meeting Packet Page 44 of 84



10/14/14 Planning Commission Meeting Packet Page 45 of 84



10/14/14 Planning Commission Meeting Packet Page 46 of 84



10/14/14 Planning Commission Meeting Packet Page 47 of 84



10/14/14 Planning Commission Meeting Packet Page 48 of 84



10/14/14 Planning Commission Meeting Packet Page 49 of 84



10/14/14 Planning Commission Meeting Packet Page 50 of 84



10/14/14 Planning Commission Meeting Packet Page 51 of 84



 
RidgeGate  
Residential Design Review Committee 
Morningstar Haselden 
Lincoln Commons South 
Pre-Submittal Meeting 
July 11, 2013  
 
 
In attendance for the Design Review Committee: 
Craig Karn, Consilium Design 
Steve Lane, Kephart Architects 
Keith Simon, Coventry Development/RidgeGate 
 
In attendance for the City of Lone Tree: 
Steve Hebert 
Jennifer Drybread 
 
In attendance for Morningstar Haselden: 
Jerry Blocher, Haselden Construction 
Jeff Shera, Lantz-Boggio Architects 
Jason Margraf, J3 Engineering Consultants, Inc. 
 
 
Applicant Presentation: 
 
The project is a senior living community consisting of two Independent Living buildings, one of which is 5 
stories, two Assisted Living buildings (3-4 stories), memory care buildings and an aquatic/fitness building.  
Living units range from 500-1,500 square feet.  The site is bounded by Commons Street on the West, Village 
Way to the north, Belvedere Lane to the east and RidgeGate Pkwy on the south.  The Assisted and 
Independent Living buildings create a central courtyard for those residents while the Assisted Living and 
Memory Care buildings create and enclosed courtyard for the memory care residents.  Site plans include 
plaza bistro space at the northwest corner of the site along Commons Street ending mid-way up the 
Independent Living building.  The grade change from Village Way to RidgeGate Pkwy is approximately 15 
feet.  The applicant presented architecture character studies. 
 
DRC Comments: 
 
Architecture 

• Give consideration to elevations along RidgeGate Parkway that face existing homes to the south.   
• Current architectural forms are somewhat arbitrary, particularly the urban design form along 

RidgeGate Parkway where the form is lost.  Reconsider the shape of the aquatic/fitness center or 
consider architecture that reinforces the round-a-bout. 

• Consider the materials and forms. Multiple materials and layers; Pitched roof and shorter buildings 
with unique features; balcony elements on Independent Living units. 

 

10/14/14 Planning Commission Meeting Packet Page 52 of 84



Site Plan/Landscape Plan 
• Consider opportunities to strengthen the street edge.   
• Double driveway ingress/egress (Commons and Belvedere) should be studied in consultation with 

City Public Works staff. 
• Consider revising the Independent Living entry to work with the utility cabinet.  Possibly a straight 

in design with round-a-bout. 
• Consider extending the outdoor plaza up to Commons and Village Way to blend with the existing 

and future retail. 
• There was discussion regarding City parking requirements and the process for a variance.  Consider 

opportunities for parallel parking in order to meeting City parking requirements.   
• Coordinate streetscape with the Rampart Range Metropolitan District. 

Next Meeting: 
• Provide cross sections 
• Continue to develop site plan and architecture 
• Provide conceptual landscape plans 
• Provide grading plans 

 
The meeting ended at 4:30pm.  The applicant was approved to the Schematic Design phase of the Design 
Review process.   

10/14/14 Planning Commission Meeting Packet Page 53 of 84



RidgeGate  
Residential Design Review Committee 
Morningstar Haselden 
Lincoln Commons South 
Schematic Design Meeting 
September 13, 2013  
 
In attendance for the Design Review Committee: 
Craig Karn, Consilium Design 
Jon Hindlemann, Hindlemann Architects 
Steve Lane, Kephart Architects 
Kevin Yoshida, The Abo Group 
 
In attendance for the City of Lone Tree: 
Steve Hebert 
 
In attendance for Morningstar Haselden: 
Jerry Blocher, Haselden Construction 
Dennis Boggio, Lantz-Boggio Architects 
Amy Deines, Lantz-Boggio Architects 
Dwight Miller, Lantz-Boggio Architects 
Ben Jenkins, J3 Engineering Consultants, Inc. 
Mardi Salazar, MEP Engineering 
 
Applicant Presentation: 
 
Per the Pre-Submittal meeting, the applicant proceeded forward with formal Site Plan and Architecture 
design. 
 
DRC Comments: 
 
Architecture 

• Consider ways to break up massing on long wall planes (especially the north side) with additional 
roof forms and materials such as brick, roof skirts, brackets or stucco color changes.  Provide 
contrasting roof materials. 

• Consider widening the north elevation center tower element or accentuate this element by using a 
contrasting material or provide more separation between the two shorter building elements. 

• Address the transition between the 2nd and the 5th story portions of building at the building 
corners. 

• Clarify the portions of the roof where RTU’s will be placed. 
• Bring the masonry level higher on the building (high waist it) elevation and consider a base-middle-

top solution to visually reduce the building height. 
• Use the influence of the Lone Tree Arts Center building for the entry arcade to this building. 
• Provide a version of the building in sketch up model. 

 

10/14/14 Planning Commission Meeting Packet Page 54 of 84



Site Plan/Landscape Plan 
• Study the 4 to 5 site and topographic conditions along RidgeGate Pkwy and provide site sections for 

DRC review. 
• Study the relationship of the building to the round-a-bout.  The building should adapt and parking 

should not be visible.  Consider increasing landscaping at the round-a-bout and give consideration 
to pedestrian connection and experience. 

• Provide detailed landscape plans, including species and call outs, at next meeting. 
• Strengthen streetscape and urban edge especially along RidgeGate Pkwy and Village Way.  

Consider double esplanade of trees with screen wall on Village Way. 
• Provide site cross sections at key points along Village Way at next meeting. 
• Provide a detail of the plaza site at the northwest corner.  Consider pedestrian connection at the 

intersection versus a midblock connection and consider ways to create an urban statement. 
• Identify and label snow storage locations. 
• Provide detail of the 11 foot wall at the site pinch point on RidgeGate Pkwy.  Break up the wall with 

color and materials.  Consider benching the wall and adding ivy.   Consider straightening this 
portion of the building to relieve the tight pinch point against the curvature of RidgeGate Pkwy and 
enhancing the public view/landscaping. 

• Consider signage revisions such as incorporating into site retaining walls. 
• Consider corner monumentation and signage as a function of the landscape, especially in the 

pedestrian plaza areas. 
• Identity and provide on street parking on Commons Street, Village Way and Belvedere Lane.  
• Integrate the RRMD provided sidewalks and tree lawns around the site perimeter as appropriate. 

 

Next Meeting: 
• Provide site cross sections as identified in the notes above 
• Continue to develop site plan and architecture 
• Provide developed landscape plans 
• Provide grading plans 
• Provide material and color boards including retaining wall materials 
• Provide 3D renderings (sketch up model) 

 
The meeting ended at 11:00am.  The applicant was conditionally approved to the Design Development 
phase of the Design Review process.   

10/14/14 Planning Commission Meeting Packet Page 55 of 84



RidgeGate  
Residential Design Review Committee 
Morningstar Haselden 
Lincoln Commons South 
Design Development Meeting 
February 6, 2014  
 
In attendance for the Design Review Committee: 
Craig Karn, Consilium Design 
Jon Hindlemann, Hindlemann Architects 
Steve Lane, Kephart Architects 
Kevin Yoshida, The Abo Group 
Keith Simon, RidgeGate 
 
In attendance for the City of Lone Tree: 
Steve Hebert 
Jennifer Drybread 
 
In attendance for Morningstar Haselden: 
Matt Turner, Morningstar 
Jerry Blocher, Haselden Construction 
Dennis Boggio, Lantz-Boggio Architects 
Amy Deines, Lantz-Boggio Architects 
Dwight Miller, Lantz-Boggio Architects 
Ariel Gelmans, BW Design Group 
Jason Margraf, J3 Engineering Consultants, Inc. 
Mardi Salazar, MEP Engineering 
 
Applicant Presentation: 
 
Dennis Boggio reviewed the comments from the Schematic Design meeting.  Their responses to and 
modifications made are as follows: 
 

• Modified the grade and architecture of the building at the southeast corner of the site to allow 
room between the building and the garden retaining wall.  This modification reduced the height of 
the wall to 6 feet maximum.  A guard rail will be installed along the points closest to the sidewalk 
and landscape material at the farther points to act as a guard rail. 

• Added trees along Village Way and along RidgeGate Pkwy to create urban edge. 
• Added landscaping details at the corners where signage is located. 
• Signage locations designated at the RidgeGate Pkwy and Commons Street round-about, Village 

Way and RidgeGate Pkwy intersection, and Commons Street and Sky Ridge Ave intersection. 
• Building materials and colors were identified.  Brick will wrap the base of the building stepping up 

at areas to break up the mass of the stucco material.  Three different hues of beige stucco colors 
were selected and were drawn from the neighboring Lincoln Park townhomes and Lone Tree Arts 
Center and one trim color was chosen.  The colors were meant to be subtle to help scale the 
building down, create a clean appearance, and help the building fade into the background.  Vertical 
details on the front entry building facade are burgundy colored metal.  Awnings are added for 

10/14/14 Planning Commission Meeting Packet Page 56 of 84



accent, consisting of terra cotta colored fabric.  Roofs are a combination of asphalt composition 
shingles and painted standing seam metal. 

• Landscape plans call for perennials around the building with ornamental grasses and other low 
maintenance materials.  Ornamental grasses are meant to screen vehicle parking areas from public 
streets.  There are no plans for turf lawn areas inside the project’s property line. 
 
 

DRC Comments: 
• In general, the submittal was not felt to be at the Design Development level of detail required, 

especially the landscape plans. 

Architecture 
1. Study and consider more contrast in the proposed color schemes for the body of the building, 

including metal railings and vertical elements that have more color or punch to them.  The color 
scheme is too subtle and washes out, especially at the upper levels and the excitement in the 
building is lost. 

2. Large panels of stucco walls need reveals and windows or other detail where possible. 
3. Study and consider ways to break up the southern elevation and upper floor of the eastern 

elevation by adding a window at the end of that hallway, as it is not engaging.  Consider a bay 
window or other architectural detail to break up the building massing.  Currently the building has 
an institutional appearance because of the massing, scale and color scheme. 

4. The project is suburban and introverted within a mandate for strong edge and urban design 
principles.  The architecture should incorporate contributions to the public realm especially the 
building and site at the northwest corner of the site where there is a lack of activation.  Let the 
urban design imperative influence the architecture of the building. 

 
Site Plan/Landscape Plan 

1. The DRC is not comfortable with the current site plan for the northwest corner of the site and it is 
not consistent with applicant’s verbal description of the “community connection”.  Study and 
consider opportunities to activate the corner with the public.  If no viable alternative is found, 
consider expanding the landscape wall around the building. 

2. Provide a 3D model of the street scene at the round-about.  Consider the addition of landscape 
elements to reinforce round-about form. 

3. Consider opportunities to enhance the corner at Village Way and Belvedere Lane and consider 
using landscape and/or structural features to enhance the project and the pedestrian transition to 
the future open space to the east. 

4. Add landscaping and/or low retaining walls to screen vehicle parking where close to sidewalk 
(Village Way and Commons Street in particular). The RidgeGate Design Standards and Guidelines 
require that parking areas are screened with a low walls or berm. 

5. Consider seeding areas around lower walls and keeping color materials at the corners.  Continue to 
explore mix and refine the landscaping palate. 

6. Add evergreen trees where there is an opportunity and explore using other columnar evergreens to 
substitute for the arborvitae.  

7. Reflect Rampart Range Metro District tree lawn landscaping and pedestrian lighting on plans. 
8. Provide cross sections of parking conditions to show prototypical site conditions. 
9. Consider opportunities for pedestrian connections from the Independent Living building to the 

perimeter sidewalk, especially at Commons Street. 
10. Provide details and material of trash enclosure. 

10/14/14 Planning Commission Meeting Packet Page 57 of 84



 
Next Meeting: 

• Provide site cross sections as identified in the notes above 
• Provide developed landscape plans 
• Provide revised material and color boards including retaining wall materials 
• Provide 3D model and renderings (sketch up model) as noted above. 

 
 

The meeting ended at 3:45pm.  The applicant was asked to resubmit to the Design Review Committee in 
the Design Development phase of the Design Review process.   

10/14/14 Planning Commission Meeting Packet Page 58 of 84



RidgeGate  
Residential Design Review Committee 
Morningstar Haselden 
Lincoln Commons South 
Design Development Resubmittal Meeting 
April 8, 2014  
 
In attendance for the Design Review Committee: 
Jon Hindlemann, Hindlemann Architects 
Steve Lane, Kephart Architects 
Keith Simon, RidgeGate 
 
In attendance for the City of Lone Tree: 
Jennifer Drybread 
 
In attendance for Morningstar Haselden: 
Matthew Turner, Morningstar 
Jerry Blocher, Haselden Construction 
Dennis Boggio, Lantz-Boggio Architects 
Amy Deines, Lantz-Boggio Architects 
Dwight Miller, Lantz-Boggio Architects 
Jeff Shera, Lantz-Boggio Architects 
Ariel Gelman, BW Design Group 
Jason Margraf, J3 Engineering Consultants, Inc. 
Mardi Jones, MEP Engineering 
 
Applicant Presentation: 
 
The following was presented: 
 

• A revised 3D model showing increased window size, addition of windows along the eastern wall, 
stucco detailing on that wall as well to help break up the solid plane and the revisions to the 
northwest corner. 

• Revised color board.  Metal roofing detail was modified to a brick red color, awnings were changed 
from orange to yellow, building body colors are now beige and tans with an orange accent color 
and the brick is a dark brown/red color. 

• Revised landscape plans for the northwest corner were presented.  The internal program was 
adjusted to push the dining/community room to the northwest corner, balconies above the corner 
extended to allow for more public space outside, awnings, benches and terraced landscape planter 
walls were added.  One planter wall will be brick where signage will be mounted and the other two 
will be rough faced retaining wall material.  The signage wall is 6 ½ to 7 feet tall.  Landscape 
materials in the walls will cascade over to soften. 

• Modifications to the northeast corner include a curvilinear plant bed around the corner of the 
building creating a connection between the two sidewalks. 

• Trash enclosure details were presented.  The trash enclosure is faced with stone to match the 
building materials. 

• Signage will be pin detail with no back lighting. 

10/14/14 Planning Commission Meeting Packet Page 59 of 84



 
DRC Comments: 

• Consistency of drawings and projection with material board needs to be confirmed for PC/CC 
Presentations. 

 
Architecture 

1. **The City prefers a terracotta color over the orange stucco color presented. 
2. **Confirm the yellow awning presents as yellow. 
3. **Provide detail of awning attachment. 

 
Site Plan/Landscape Plan 
Northwest Corner: 

1. Consider ways to soften the 90 degree angle of the signage wall. 
2. **Continue ground planting bed around the corner planter wall. 
3. **Reorient the two benches 90-degrees from planter wall in paired groupings and add  additional 

bench grouping . 
4. **Add a rectangular tree bed rather than tree grates. 
5. Consider using color and/or patterned materials for planter walls.  Consider using brick on all low 

walls. 
6. Re-Study # of parking lot light fixtures in North Lot. 

 
Northeast Corner: 

1. **The DRC favors eliminating the path element. 

Overall Site: 
1. **Consider opportunities for year round color landscape, i.e. evergreens. 
2. **The DRC will provide Craig Karn’s comments regarding species and other detailed landscape 

comments separately. 
3. **Consider potential conflicts of ornamental trees with pedestrians and vehicles. 

 
 

The meeting ended at 3:30pm.  The applicant was approved to the Construction Document phase of the 
Design Review process and approved to submit their SIP to the City of Lone Tree SUBJECT TO 
INTEGRATION OF THE COMMENTS ABOVE W/**. 

10/14/14 Planning Commission Meeting Packet Page 60 of 84



RidgeGate  
Residential Design Review Committee 
Morningstar Haselden 
Lincoln Commons South 
Design Development Resubmittal Meeting 
September 10, 2014  
 
In attendance for the Design Review Committee: 
Jon Hindlemann, Hindlemann Architects 
Steve Lane, Kephart Architects 
Dick Marshall 
Keith Simon, RidgeGate 
Kevin Yoshida, The Abo Group 
 
In attendance for the City of Lone Tree: 
Jennifer Drybread 
 
In attendance for Morningstar Haselden: 
Matthew Turner, Morningstar 
Jerry Blocher, Haselden Construction 
Amy Deines, Lantz-Boggio Architects 
Dwight Miller, Lantz-Boggio Architects 
Jeff Shera, Lantz-Boggio Architects 
Mardi Jones, MEP Engineering 
 
Applicant Presentation: 
 
The applicant reviewed modifications made since the April DRC meeting and subsequent work sessions. 
 

• 34 units were added to the project.  Those units came from the addition of a 5th story on the north 
elevation and a 3rd story to the east Assisted Living elevation. 

• The northwest corner remains 3 stories. 
• Parking spaces were added.  39 in the garage and 5 surface spaces between the west and north 

parking lots.  There will be controlled access entry at night. 
• The emergency generator was moved to the northwest corner of project and is screened by an 8 

foot enclosure.  The enclosure material will be the same as the retaining wall material. 
• The retaining wall along the north of the site was extended west, it is about 3’ to 4’ in height, and a 

retaining wall was added along the south side of the site.  
• A low retaining wall was added on the east elevation in front of the memory care center. 
• The west and south architectural elevations were unchanged. 
• The east elevation was changed to include the 3rd story on the Assisted Living building. 
• The north elevation was modified by extending the 5 story elevation east. 
• The northwest corner elevation has the added generator enclosure with a small landscape strip 

between the enclosure and the sidewalk. 
• LED lighting will be provided with a thin edge to the light fixture so that they are less visible and be 

a warm color. 

10/14/14 Planning Commission Meeting Packet Page 61 of 84



• Pedestrian light fixtures are at 15’ in height.  Pedestrian lights will be at assisted living and 
independent living entries. 

• Building mounted sconces will be dark bronze. 
• Seasonal lighting will be used. 

 
DRC Comments: 

• Consistency of drawings : 
o Correct landscape colors to match landscape plan materials. 
o Coordinate landscape renderings to include RRMD landscape. 
o Update context site plan on the cover of the SIP package.   Darryl will send Amy a new 

plan. 
 

• Items of note for Planning Commission and City Council hearings: 
o Be aware of the possible push back from Planning Commission regarding the use of 

Honey Locust trees. 
o Create a presentation board with the landscape site plan in color. 
o Include 3D models in presentation materials. 

 
Architecture 

1. Consider opportunities to enhance the east tower element on the north elevation due to the new 
street alignment and now that it is a focal point.  Consider adding windows or spandrel glass as 
reveals and scoring is not enough given the mass of the wall. 

 
Site Plan/Landscape Plan 

• Consider a third tree species to the plant scheme for additional variety. 
 

Northwest Corner: 
1. Consider vines (and a trellis element) or columnar junipers in the planting area around the 

generator enclosure. 
2. Consider alternative retaining wall material, colors or pattern of materials for the leading walls at 

northwest corner.  At a minimum change the color or add a decorative coursing of the building 
brick or wall cap. 

3. Coordinate outdoor furnishing with the Metro District improvements. 
 

North Parking Lot: 
1. Increase plant material in the islands to add as much material as possible. 
2. Consider lowering the hedge or trim low at driveway ingress/egress due to possible sight distance 

issues. 
3. Consider a lighter colored textured pole for light poles and fixtures in the parking lot to help make 

them disappear. 
 
Southeast Corner: 

1. Delete the sod in front of signage monument.  Consider additional planting material or ornamental 
grasses. 

 
Signage: 
Signs were approved as presented and clarified that there is ground mounted lighting, but no up lighting.   

10/14/14 Planning Commission Meeting Packet Page 62 of 84



 
The meeting ended at 12:00pm.  The applicant was conditionally approved to the Construction 
Document phase of the Design Review process and approved to submit their SIP to the City of Lone Tree. 

10/14/14 Planning Commission Meeting Packet Page 63 of 84



10/14/14 Planning Commission Meeting Packet Page 64 of 84



 
CITY OF LONE TREE 

STAFF REPORT 
      

TO:   Lone Tree Planning Commission 

FROM:  Kelly First, Community Development Director 
    
DATE:  October 8, 2014 

FOR:   October 14, 2014 Agenda 

SUBJECT: Proposed Amendment to Chapter 16 (Zoning) of the Municipal 
Code related to consolidation of the Board of Adjustment and 
Appeals. Public Hearing item #MI14-64 

Summary 
The Board of Adjustment and the Board of Appeals are two boards that very seldom meet 
for official business.  The Board of Adjustment has met twice since the city incorporated 
and the Board of Appeals has met eight times during that same time period.  The Board 
of Adjustment is required by the City’s home rule charter and the Board of Appeals is 
required by the building code. Staff proposes consolidation of the two boards.  

References to the Boards appears in two sections of the Municipal Code: Chapter 2 
(Administration and Personnel), and Chapter 16 (Zoning). Chapter 16 (Zoning) 
amendments must be considered by the Planning Commission and City Council, per Sec. 
16-1-100 of the Zoning Code.  

Amendments are limited to Article XXVI of the Zoning Code (Variance and Appeal 
Standards and Procedures). There are no changes proposed to the procedures or 
requirements associated with variances or appeals. Rather, the amendments are simply 
to change all references to “Board of Adjustment” to “Board of Adjustment and Appeals”. 
Also, at the advice of the City Attorney, a new section has been added (16-26-100) to 
clarify the option for review of decisions by District Court. A red-lined version of the 
Chapter with proposed amendments is attached.  

 

Recommended Action 
Staff recommends the Planning Commission recommend approval of the Zoning Code 
Amendments to the City Council. 
 

10/14/14 Planning Commission Meeting Packet Page 65 of 84



Background 
 

Creation and Purpose of the Board of Adjustment 
 
The Board of Adjustment is required by Article VII of the City’s Charter.  
According to the Charter: 

• By ordinance, the Council shall create and establish a Board of 
Adjustment and shall determine the number of its members. The Council 
shall appoint such members, who shall serve overlapping terms of three 
years.  (Note the Charter does not set a minimum number of members, 
nor does it require term limits for the Board of Adjustment.) 

• The Board shall exercise the powers and perform the duties assigned to it 
by the Council acting by ordinance. The findings and decisions of the 
Board shall be final and subject to judicial review. 

Article V of the Municipal Code establishes the Board of Adjustment.  According 
to Article V: 

• Early versions of the code required the Board consist of five members.  
The current version of the code does not state a minimum.  Historically, 
appointment resolutions have always kept the Board of Adjustment at five 
(5) members. 

• The Board of Adjustment may grant variances to Chapter 16 of the Code 
(Zoning Chapter), subject to the limitation and approval criteria in Chapter 
16. 

• The Board of Adjustment shall also hear and decide appeals of any 
administrative decision related to the enforcement of Chapter 16. 

• Article V and Chapter 16 require a minimum of four affirmative votes to 
approve a variance or appeal. 

Chapter 16 limits the authority of the Board of Adjustment to variances related to: 

• Minimum area of a lot 

• Maximum height of structures or fences 

• Minimum setbacks 

• Minimum off-street parking requirements 

Chapter 16 also gives the City Council the authority to grant variances through 
the Site Improvement Plan (SIP) process.  Because all non-single-family 
residential developments are subject to an SIP, historically variances for these 
types of projects have been the purview of the City Council. 

 
10/14/14 Planning Commission Meeting Packet Page 66 of 84



In addition to the Council’s authority to grant variances, all of the City’s single-
family residential subdivisions are relatively new, having been established in the 
1980s and after.  The zone districts, minimum lot sizes, setbacks and height 
restrictions closely match the intent of the original subdivisions.  In addition, most 
of the subdivisions have relatively strong homeowners associations, with 
restrictive covenants.  Because of this, setback and height variances are very 
seldom required or requested by homeowners. 

The two variance applications the Board of Adjustment has heard since 
incorporation include the height variance for the SkyVenture structure and 
setback variances for a shed, a garage and a bay window at a home in the 
Carriage Club.  The SkyVenture variance was denied by the Board but 
subsequently approved by the City Council through an amendment to the 
Planned Development zoning.  The Carriage Club variances were all denied 
unanimously by the Board. 

 

Creation and Purpose of the Board of Appeals  

The Board of Appeals is established in the International Building Code (IBC) and 
the International Residential Code (IRC) “to hear and decide appeals of orders, 
decisions or determinations made by the building official relative to the 
application and interpretation of the code.”  The Board of Appeals does not grant 
variances to the building code, but rather rules on interpretations of the code or 
whether a request for modification meets the intent of the code.  

Per the IBC and the IRC, the Board of Appeals shall consist of members who are 
qualified by experience and training to pass on matters pertaining to building 
construction and are not employees of the jurisdiction. 

The eight times the Board of Appeals has met occurred prior to 2007, when the 
City was still using the 1997 Uniform Building Code (UBC).  In 2009, the City 
adopted the 2006 series of building codes and currently enforces the 2009 series 
of codes.   The 1997 UBC was a more prescriptive code with little room for 
interpretation or flexibility.  The more recent International Codes (IBC and IRC) 
are prescriptive but also performance-based, and as such they allow for alternate 
means and modifications to meet the intent of the code.  Most jurisdictions in the 
metro area have also seen a dramatic reduction in the number of appeals 
considered by their boards.  Douglas County’s building board of appeals has met 
once in the last eight years. 

 
Proposed Consolidation 
Having two boards that seldom meet is an unnecessary use of resources necessary to 
advertise, interview and train.  It is often disappointing to the members who get 
appointed to sit on a board or commission that seldom, if ever, meets.  Staff suggests 

 
10/14/14 Planning Commission Meeting Packet Page 67 of 84



amending the municipal code and the Council adopted policy on commissions, boards 
and committees to maintain one board instead of two.   
 
The essential elements of the proposal are as follows: 
 

a) One board called the Board of Adjustment and Appeals 
b) Five board members 
c) At least three members should have experience in the building trades, such as 

construction, architecture, fire protection, civil engineering or related legal 
experience.  Two members may not have any of the above background 

d) Terms of three years 
e) No term limits 
f) All current members of the two individual boards may be considered for the 

consolidated board 
g) Approval of zoning code variances would still require four affirmative votes 
h) Building code appeals would require four affirmative votes. 

 

 
10/14/14 Planning Commission Meeting Packet Page 68 of 84



CHAPTER 16 

Zoning 

Article I Administrative Provisions and Procedures 
Sec. 16-1-10 Intent 
Sec. 16-1-20 Authority of City 
Sec. 16-1-25 Short title 
Sec. 16-1-30 Overlapping regulations 
Sec. 16-1-35 Applicability 
Sec. 16-1-40 Existing permits or easements 
Sec. 16-1-50 Jurisdiction 
Sec. 16-1-60 Fees 
Sec. 16-1-70 Definitions and section numbers 
Sec. 16-1-90 Calculation of time period for public notice 
Sec. 16-1-100 Amendment of Chapter; procedure 
Sec. 16-1-110 Effective date of amendments 
Sec. 16-1-120 Public notice requirements for amendments 
Sec. 16-1-130 Violations 
Sec. 16-1-140 Penalties 
Sec. 16-1-150 Damages and abatement 
Sec. 16-1-160 Enforcement of Chapter 
Sec. 16-1-170 Nonliability for officials 
Sec. 16-1-180 Nonliability for injury 
Sec. 16-1-190 Any provision declared invalid 
Sec. 16-1-200 Application of any provision declared invalid 
Sec. 16-1-205 Repeals 
Sec. 16-1-210 Effective date 

Article II General Requirements and Exceptions 
Sec. 16-2-10 Districts 
Sec. 16-2-20 Incorporation of maps 
Sec. 16-2-30 District boundaries 
Sec. 16-2-40 Disconnected land 
Sec. 16-2-50 Exclusion of uses 
Sec. 16-2-60 Inclusion of use not listed 
Sec. 16-2-70 Trash, junk, inoperative vehicles 
Sec. 16-2-80 Reserved 
Sec. 16-2-90 Public access 
Sec. 16-2-100 Minimum area 
Sec. 16-2-110 Building restrictions 
Sec. 16-2-120 Merger by contiguity 
Sec. 16-2-130 Satisfied dedication requirements 
Sec. 16-2-140 Review fees 
Sec. 16-2-150 Reserved 
Sec. 16-2-160 Setbacks for infill lots 
Sec. 16-2-170 Household pets 
Sec. 16-2-180 Planned Developments 
Sec. 16-2-190 Dedication of land 
Sec. 16-2-200 Group homes 
Sec. 16-2-210 Property maintenance 
Sec. 16-2-220 Variances to height and setback requirements 

16-1 10/14/14 Planning Commission Meeting Packet Page 69 of 84



Article III Reserved 

Article IV Reserved 

Article V Reserved 

Article VI Reserved 

Article VII SR – Suburban Residential District (SR-1—SR-M) 
Sec. 16-7-10 Intent 
Sec. 16-7-20 Principal uses 
Sec. 16-7-30 Accessory uses 
Sec. 16-7-40 Uses permitted by special review 
Sec. 16-7-50 Maximum gross density 
Sec. 16-7-60 Minimum lot area 
Sec. 16-7-70 Water and sanitation 
Sec. 16-7-80 Utilities 
Sec. 16-7-90 Land dedication 
Sec. 16-7-100 Street standards 
Sec. 16-7-110 Parking standards 
Sec. 16-7-120 Minimum setbacks 
Sec. 16-7-130 Encroachments 
Sec. 16-7-140 Building height 
Sec. 16-7-150 Fencing standards 
Sec. 16-7-160 Sign standards 
Sec. 16-7-170 Lighting standards 
Sec. 16-7-175 Common/public area standards 
Sec. 16-7-180 Subzoning districts (SR-1 through SR-4) 
Sec. 16-7-190 Principal uses of SR-1 Subzoning District 
Sec. 16-7-200 Uses permitted by special review in SR-1 Subzoning District 
Sec. 16-7-210 Development standards of SR-1 Subzoning District 
Sec. 16-7-220 Principal uses of SR-2 Subzoning District 
Sec. 16-7-230 Uses permitted by special review in SR-2 Subzoning District 
Sec. 16-7-240 Development standards of SR-2 Subzoning District 
Sec. 16-7-250 Principal uses of SR-3 Subzoning District 
Sec. 16-7-260 Uses permitted by special review in SR-3 Subzoning District 
Sec. 16-7-270 Development standards of SR-3 Subzoning District 
Sec. 16-7-280 Principal uses of SR-4 Subzoning District 
Sec. 16-7-290 Subzoning districts (SR-E – Estate; SR-L – Low Density and SR-M – 

Moderate Density) of SR-3 
Sec. 16-7-300 Development standards of SR-4 Subzoning District 
Sec. 16-7-310 Subzoning districts (SR-E – Estate, SR-L – Low Density and SR-M – 

Moderate Density) of SR-4 
Sec. 16-7-320 Principal uses of SR-E, SR-L and SR-M Subzoning Districts 
Sec. 16-7-330 Uses permitted by special review in SR-E, SR-L and SR-M Subzoning 

Districts 
Sec. 16-7-340 Development standards of SR-E, SR-L and SR-M Subzoning Districts 
Sec. 16-7-350 Accessory buildings and uses in SR-E, SR-L and SR-M Subzoning 

Districts 
Sec. 16-7-360 Setbacks for accessory uses in SR-E, SR-L and SR-M Subzones 

Article VIII MF – Multi-family District (MF-1, MF-2) 
Sec. 16-8-10 Intent 
Sec. 16-8-20 Principal uses 
Sec. 16-8-30 Accessory uses 

16-2 10/14/14 Planning Commission Meeting Packet Page 70 of 84



Sec. 16-8-40 Uses permitted by special review 
Sec. 16-8-50 Maximum gross density 
Sec. 16-8-60 Minimum lot area 
Sec. 16-8-70 Water and sanitation 
Sec. 16-8-80 Public utilities 
Sec. 16-8-90 Land dedication 
Sec. 16-8-100 Street standards 
Sec. 16-8-110 Landscape requirements 
Sec. 16-8-120 Parking standards 
Sec. 16-8-130 Minimum setbacks 
Sec. 16-8-140 Encroachments 
Sec. 16-8-150 Building height 
Sec. 16-8-160 Fencing standards 
Sec. 16-8-170 Sign standards 
Sec. 16-8-180 Lighting standards 
Sec. 16-8-190 Subzoning districts (MF-1, MF-2) 
Sec. 16-8-200 Principal uses of MF-1 Subzoning District 
Sec. 16-8-210 Development standards of MF-1 Subzoning District 
Sec. 16-8-220 Subzoning Districts (MF-2) 
Sec. 16-8-230 Principal uses of MF-2 Subzoning District 
Sec. 16-8-240 Development standards of MF-2 Subzoning District 

Article IX I – Institutional District 
Sec. 16-9-10 Intent 
Sec. 16-9-20 Principal uses 
Sec. 16-9-30 Accessory uses 
Sec. 16-9-40 Uses permitted by special review 
Sec. 16-9-50 Minimum lot area 
Sec. 16-9-60 Parking standards 
Sec. 16-9-70 Landscaping requirement 
Sec. 16-9-80 Minimum setbacks 
Sec. 16-9-90 Building height 
Sec. 16-9-100 Sign standards 
Sec. 16-9-110 Lighting standards 

Article X Reserved 

Article XI B – Business District 
Sec. 16-11-10 Intent 
Sec. 16-11-20 Principal uses 
Sec. 16-11-30 Accessory uses 
Sec. 16-11-40 Uses permitted by special review 
Sec. 16-11-50 Minimum lot area 
Sec. 16-11-60 Water and sanitation requirement 
Sec. 16-11-70 Utilities 
Sec. 16-11-80 Land dedication 
Sec. 16-11-90 Street standards 
Sec. 16-11-100 Parking standards 
Sec. 16-11-110 Landscaping requirement 
Sec. 16-11-120 Minimum setbacks 
Sec. 16-11-130 Encroachments 
Sec. 16-11-140 Building height 
Sec. 16-11-150 Fencing standards 
Sec. 16-11-160 Outdoor storage 

16-3 10/14/14 Planning Commission Meeting Packet Page 71 of 84



Sec. 16-11-170 Sign standards 
Sec. 16-11-180 Lighting standards 

Article XII C – Commercial District 
Sec. 16-12-10 Intent 
Sec. 16-12-20 Principal uses 
Sec. 16-12-30 Accessory uses 
Sec. 16-12-40 Uses permitted by special review 
Sec. 16-12-50 Minimum lot area 
Sec. 16-12-60 Water and sanitation requirement 
Sec. 16-12-70 Utilities 
Sec. 16-12-80 Reserved 
Sec. 16-12-90 Street standards 
Sec. 16-12-100 Parking standards 
Sec. 16-12-110 Landscaping requirement 
Sec. 16-12-120 Minimum setbacks 
Sec. 16-12-130 Encroachments and sidewalks 
Sec. 16-12-140 Building height 
Sec. 16-12-150 Fencing standards 
Sec. 16-12-160 Outdoor storage  
Sec. 16-12-170 Sign standards 
Sec. 16-12-180 Lighting standards 
Sec. 16-12-190 Hours of operation 
Sec. 16-12-200 Subzoning districts C-1 through C-5 
Sec. 16-12-210 Principal uses of C-1 Subzoning District 
Sec. 16-12-220 Uses permitted by special review of C-1 Subzoning District 
Sec. 16-12-230 Density and open space of C-1 Subzoning District 
Sec. 16-12-240 Minimum setbacks of C-1 Subzoning District 
Sec. 16-12-250 Reserved 
Sec. 16-12-260 Shadow restrictions of C-1 Subzoning District 
Sec. 16-12-270 Principal uses of C-2 Subzoning District 
Sec. 16-12-280 Uses permitted by special review of C-2 Subzoning District 
Sec. 16-12-290 Density and open space of C-2 Subzoning District 
Sec. 16-12-300 Minimum setbacks of C-2 Subzoning District 
Sec. 16-12-310 Reserved 
Sec. 16-12-320 Principal uses of C-3 Subzoning District 
Sec. 16-12-330 Uses permitted by special review of C-3 Subzoning District 
Sec. 16-12-340 Density and open space of C-3 Subzoning District 
Sec. 16-12-350 Minimum setbacks of C-3 Subzoning District 
Sec. 16-12-360 General building and parking minimum setbacks of C-3 Subzoning 

District 
Sec. 16-12-370 Principal uses of C-4 Subzoning District 
Sec. 16-12-380 Density and open space of C-4 Subzoning District 
Sec. 16-12-390 Maximum building height of C-4 Subzoning District 
Sec. 16-12-400 Minimum setbacks of C-4 Subzoning District 
Sec. 16-12-410 Adjacent residential buffer for C-4 Subzoning District 
Sec. 16-12-420 Signage of C-4 Subzoning District 
Sec. 16-12-430 Lighting of C-4 Subzoning District 
Sec. 16-12-440 Principal uses of C-5 Subzoning District 
Sec. 16-12-450 Uses permitted by special review of C-5 Subzoning District 
Sec. 16-12-460 Development standards of C-5 Subzoning District 

16-4 10/14/14 Planning Commission Meeting Packet Page 72 of 84



Article XIII Reserved 

Article XIV Reserved 

Article XV PD – Planned Development District 
Sec. 16-15-10 Intent 
Sec. 16-15-15 General requirements 
Sec. 16-15-20 Approval criteria for Planned Development zoning or rezoning 
Sec. 16-15-25 Step One - Preapplication review 
Sec. 16-15-30 Step One – Submittal process 
Sec. 16-15-35 Step One – Submittal requirements 
Sec. 16-15-40 Project summary 
Sec. 16-15-45 Plan exhibit 
Sec. 16-15-50 Step Two – Submittal and decision process 
Sec. 16-15-55 Step Two – General submittal requirements 
Sec. 16-15-60 Development plan 
Sec. 16-15-70 Recordation of development plan 
Sec. 16-15-80 Public notice requirements – zoning or rezoning 
Sec. 16-15-90 Amendments to development plan 
Sec. 16-15-100 Administrative amendment; criteria 
Sec. 16-15-110 Administrative amendment; submittal process 
Sec. 16-15-120 Administrative amendment; submittal requirements 
Sec. 16-15-130 Major amendment; criteria 
Sec. 16-15-140 Major amendment; submittal process 
Sec. 16-15-150 Major amendment; submittal requirements 
Sec. 16-15-160 Rezoning; criteria 
Sec. 16-15-170 Withdrawal of application 
Sec. 16-15-180 Inactive files 
Sec. 16-15-190 Waivers 

Article XVI P & OS – Parks and Open Space District 
Sec. 16-16-10 Intent 
Sec. 16-16-20 Principal uses 
Sec. 16-16-30 Accessory uses 
Sec. 16-16-40 Minimum lot area 
Sec. 16-16-50 Parking standards 
Sec. 16-16-60 Building height 
Sec. 16-16-70 Fencing standards 
Sec. 16-16-80 Sign standards 
Sec. 16-16-90 Lighting standards 

Article XVII Utility Service and Telecommunication Facility – Overlay District 
Sec. 16-17-10 Intent 
Sec. 16-17-20 Definitions 
Sec. 16-17-30 Site selection criteria 
Sec. 16-17-40 Design criteria 
Sec. 16-17-50 Maximum height for utility service and telecommunication facilities 
Sec. 16-17-60 Minimum setbacks for freestanding facilities 
Sec. 16-17-70 Application, submittal and approval procedures 
Sec. 16-17-80 Application submittal requirements 
Sec. 16-17-90 Application submittal requirements for telecommunications facilities 
Sec. 16-17-100 Decision 
Sec. 16-17-110 Co-location 

16-5 10/14/14 Planning Commission Meeting Packet Page 73 of 84



Article XVIII Floodplain – Overlay District 
Sec. 16-18-10 Intent 
Sec. 16-18-20 Definitions 
Sec. 16-18-30 Nature of district 
Sec. 16-18-40 Boundary 
Sec. 16-18-50 Uses prohibited 
Sec. 16-18-60 Uses permitted by right 
Sec. 16-18-70 Uses permitted by floodplain development permit within floodway 
Sec. 16-18-80 Uses permitted by floodplain development permit within one-hundred-

year floodplain 
Sec. 16-18-90 Development standards 
Sec. 16-18-100 Administration 
Sec. 16-18-110 Floodplain development permit 
Sec. 16-18-120 Floodplain development permit; submittal process 
Sec. 16-18-130 Floodplain development permit; submittal requirements 
Sec. 16-18-140 Floodplain development permit; approval criteria 
Sec. 16-18-150 Conditions of approval 
Sec. 16-18-160 Warning and disclaimer of liability 

Article XIX Reserved 

Article XX Nonconforming Uses and Structures 
Sec. 16-20-10 Intent 
Sec. 16-20-20 Nonconforming use 
Sec. 16-20-30 Nonconforming structure 
Sec. 16-20-40 Nonconforming lot 
Sec. 16-20-50 Termination 

Article XXI Use by Special Review 
Sec. 16-21-10 Intent 
Sec. 16-21-20 Approval standards 
Sec. 16-21-30 Length of approval 
Sec. 16-21-40 Annual review 
Sec. 16-21-50 Amendment of approved special use 
Sec. 16-21-60 General provisions 
Sec. 16-21-70 Nonconforming lots 
Sec. 16-21-80 Prerequisite 
Sec. 16-21-90 Submittal process 
Sec. 16-21-100 Withdrawal of application 
Sec. 16-21-110 Submittal requirements 
Sec. 16-21-120 Narrative 
Sec. 16-21-130 Management plan 
Sec. 16-21-140 Plan exhibit 
Sec. 16-21-150 Public notice requirements 
Sec. 16-21-160 Termination of use 
Sec. 16-21-170 Inactive files 
Sec. 16-21-180 Post-denial application 

Article XXII Temporary Structures 
Sec. 16-22-10 Intent 
Sec. 16-22-20 General requirements 
Sec. 16-22-30 Temporary permit process 
Sec. 16-22-40 Temporary construction office 
Sec. 16-22-50 Temporary residential sales office 
Sec. 16-22-60 Temporary nonresidential office 

16-6 10/14/14 Planning Commission Meeting Packet Page 74 of 84



Sec. 16-22-70 Temporary commercial structures 

Article XXII-A Temporary Uses 
Sec. 16-22A-10 Intent 
Sec. 16-22A-20 General requirements 
Sec. 16-22A-30 Markets, festivals and fairs; specific requirements 
Sec. 16-22A-40 Grand openings, anniversary celebrations and other special occasions; 

specific requirements 
Sec. 16-22A-50 Christmas tree sales lot; specific requirements 
Sec. 16-22A-60 Fruit and vegetable stands; specific requirements 
Sec. 16-22A-70 Outdoor sales and promotions; specific requirements 
Sec. 16-22A-80 Temporary Use Permit; permitting procedure 
Sec. 16-22A-90 Grounds for denial of permit 
Sec. 16-22A-100 Temporary Use Permit; submittal requirements 

Article XXII-B Outdoor Storage 
Sec. 16-22B-10 Intent 
Sec. 16-22B-20 Applicability 
Sec. 16-22B-30 Permanent outdoor storage 
Sec. 16-22B-40 Temporary outdoor storage 

Article XXIII Home Occupation 
Sec. 16-23-10 Intent 
Sec. 16-23-20 Home occupation 
Sec. 16-23-30 Home occupation; criteria 

Article XXIV Reserved 

Article XXV Rezoning 
Sec. 16-25-10 Intent 
Sec. 16-25-20 Standards for approval 
Sec. 16-25-30 Step One – preapplication review; prerequisite 
Sec. 16-25-40 Step One – preapplication review; submittal process 
Sec. 16-25-50 Step One – preapplication review; submittal requirements 
Sec. 16-25-60 Project summary 
Sec. 16-25-70 Plan exhibit 
Sec. 16-25-80 Step Two – rezoning; submittal process 
Sec. 16-25-90 Step Two – rezoning; submittal requirements 
Sec. 16-25-100 Public notice requirements; rezoning 
Sec. 16-25-110 Withdrawal of application 
Sec. 16-25-120 Inactive files 
Sec. 16-25-130 City-initiated rezoning 

Article XXVI Variance and Appeal Standards and Procedures 
Sec. 16-26-10 Intent 
Sec. 16-26-20 Variance limitations 
Sec. 16-26-30 Variance; approval criteria 
Sec. 16-26-40 Administrative variance 
Sec. 16-26-50 Appeals or variances to Board of AdjustmentBoard of Adjustment and 

Appeals 
Sec. 16-26-60 Public notice requirements 
Sec. 16-26-70 Variance request heard by City Council 
Sec. 16-26-80 Post-approval action 
Sec. 16-26-90 Post-denial application 

16-7 10/14/14 Planning Commission Meeting Packet Page 75 of 84



Article XXVII Site Improvement Plan (SIP) 
Sec. 16-27-10 Intent 
Sec. 16-27-20 Applicability 
Sec. 16-27-30 Variances 
Sec. 16-27-40 Design guidelines 
Sec. 16-27-50 General submittal requirements 
Sec. 16-27-60 Narrative submittal requirements 
Sec. 16-27-70 SIP submittal requirements 
Sec. 16-27-80 Review process 
Sec. 16-27-90 Approval provisions 
Sec. 16-27-100 Post-approval submittal and review process 
Sec. 16-27-110 SIP amendments 

Article XXVIII Parking Standards 
Sec. 16-28-10 Intent 
Sec. 16-28-15 Applicability 
Sec. 16-28-20 General provisions 
Sec. 16-28-30 Parking plan requirements 
Sec. 16-28-40 Design standards for parking spaces 
Sec. 16-28-50 Design standards for parking areas 
Sec. 16-28-55 Maximum parking requirements 
Sec. 16-28-60 Minimum requirements for off-street parking; general provisions 
Sec. 16-28-70 Requirements for off-street parking; specific use 
Sec. 16-28-80 Bicycle parking 

Article XXIX Sign Standards 
Sec. 16-29-10 Purpose and intent 
Sec. 16-29-20 Application of Article 
Sec. 16-29-30 Signs allowed without a sign permit 
Sec. 16-29-40 Prohibited signs 
Sec. 16-29-50 Sign permit 
Sec. 16-29-60 General provisions 
Sec. 16-29-70 Design guidelines 
Sec. 16-29-80 On-site signs – residential 
Sec. 16-29-90 On-site signs – nonresidential 
Sec. 16-29-100 Permanent sign measurements 
Sec. 16-29-110 Sign illumination 
Sec. 16-29-120 Nonconforming signs 
Sec. 16-29-130 Temporary banners 
Sec. 16-29-140 Temporary use signs 
Sec. 16-29-150 Severability 
Sec. 16-29-160 Definitions 

Article XXX Lighting Standards 
Sec. 16-30-10 Intent 
Sec. 16-30-20 Lighting standards 
Sec. 16-30-30 Indoor lighting 

Article XXXI Clearing, Grading and Land Disturbance 
Sec. 16-31-10 Intent 
Sec. 16-31-20 Permits required 
Sec. 16-31-30 Permits not required 
Sec. 16-31-40 Review issues 
Sec. 16-31-50 Minimum standards 
Sec. 16-31-60 Submittal requirements 

16-8 10/14/14 Planning Commission Meeting Packet Page 76 of 84



Sec. 16-31-70 Submittal process 
Sec. 16-31-80 Expiration of plan 
Sec. 16-31-90 Appeals process 
Sec. 16-31-100 Fees 
Sec. 16-31-110 Security 
Sec. 16-31-120 Insurance 
Sec. 16-31-130 Violations 
Sec. 16-31-140 Stop Work Order 
Sec. 16-31-150 Abatement 
Sec. 16-31-160 Applicability of other laws and regulations 

Article XXXII Landscaping Standards 
Sec. 16-32-10 Intent 
Sec. 16-32-20 Applicability 
Sec. 16-32-30 Water-efficient landscaping principles 
Sec. 16-32-40 Landscape design 
Sec. 16-32-50 Minimum area to be landscaped 
Sec. 16-32-60 Parking lot landscaping 
Sec. 16-32-70 Minimum plant size 
Sec. 16-32-80 Minimum plant quantity 
Sec. 16-32-90 Plant selection 
Sec. 16-32-100 Soil amendment 
Sec. 16-32-110 Irrigation 
Sec. 16-32-120 Mulching/groundcover 
Sec. 16-32-130 Plant replacement 
Sec. 16-32-140 Field change orders 

Article XXXIII Reserved 

Article XXXIV Vested Property Rights 
Sec. 16-34-10 Intent and authority 
Sec. 16-34-20 Criteria 
Sec. 16-34-30 Procedure 
Sec. 16-34-40 Public notice requirements 
Sec. 16-34-50 City Council actions 
Sec. 16-34-60 Post-approval action 
Sec. 16-34-70 Approval rights 
Sec. 16-34-80 Vesting period 
Sec. 16-34-90 Jurisdiction 
Sec. 16-34-100 Judicial determination 

Article XXXV Solar and Wind Energy Standards 
Sec. 16-35-10 Intent 
Sec. 16-35-20 Applicability 
Sec. 16-35-30 Solar Panels 
Sec. 16-35-40 Small Wind Turbines 

Article XXXVI Definitions 
Sec. 16-36-10 Rules of construction 
Sec. 16-36-20 Definitions 

16-9 10/14/14 Planning Commission Meeting Packet Page 77 of 84



 

ARTICLE XXVI 

Variance and Appeal Standards and Procedures 

Sec. 16-26-10. Intent. 

The purpose of this Article is to provide a process and criteria for varying from certain provisions of 
this Chapter so as to afford a measure of flexibility in the standards, while ensuring that development is 
sensitive to the natural and built environment and to existing and future residents, and to support or 
advance community goals and policies.  (Ord. 02-01 §2601; Ord. 05-13 §2601) 

Sec. 16-26-20. Variance limitations. 

(a) Variances shall be limited to the following: 

(1) Minimum area of a lot. 

(2) Maximum height of structures or fences. 

(3) Minimum setbacks. 

(4) Minimum off-street parking requirements. 

(b) A variance for the following shall be strictly prohibited: 

(1) A use variance to permit a use other than those listed in a specific zoning district. 

(2) A variance authorizing a violation of this Chapter or any duly adopted ordinance of the 
City.  (Ord. 02-01 §2602; Ord. 04-17 §1; Ord. 05-13 §2602) 

Sec. 16-26-30. Variance; approval criteria. 

(a) A variance may be granted only where it can be demonstrated that such: 

(1) Is sensitive to and compatible with adjoining existing and future land uses; 

(2) Will not adversely impact the natural environment through unwarranted or undesirable 
grading, altering of drainages or vegetation removal; 

(3) Maintains a desirable balance with the overall bulk and massing of building architecture; 
and 

(4) Promotes other community goals as set forth in the City’s Comprehensive Plan, such as a 
well-planned, high-quality and, where appropriate, compact development. 

16-10 10/14/14 Planning Commission Meeting Packet Page 78 of 84



(b) A variance may be granted, provided that no substantial detriment to the public good is created 
and that the intent and purpose of this Chapter is not impaired.  (Ord. 02-01 §2603; Ord. 04-17 §1; Ord. 
05-13 §2603) 

Sec. 16-26-40. Administrative variance. 

The Director may grant up to a twenty-five-percent adjustment in the zoning requirements for 
those items listed in Subsection 16-26-20(a) in accordance with the approval criteria listed in Section 
16-26-30.  The applicant shall submit the processing fee and the information required in Subsection 
16-26-50(d) below to the Community Development Department.  The applicant shall notify abutting 
landowners affected by the appeal or the request.  Such notification shall be either a notice of the 
variance request sent by certified mail, return receipt requested, at least ten (10) days prior to the 
Director's consideration of such request, or the applicant may obtain a signed statement from the 
abutting landowners stating that they were notified of the variance request and submit those 
signatures with the application.  A decision by the Director to deny such variance may be appealed to 
the Board of AdjustmentBoard of Adjustment and Appeals in accordance with the procedure in 
Section 16-26-50 below.  A written appeal shall be submitted by the applicant to the Community 
Development Department within ten (10) days of such denial.  (Ord. 02-01 §2604; Ord. 05-13 §2604) 

Sec. 16-26-50. Appeals or variances to Board of AdjustmentBoard of Adjustment and Appeals. 

(a) Appeal.  An appeal may be taken to the Board of AdjustmentBoard of Adjustment and Appeals 
by any person aggrieved by an inability to obtain a building permit or by an administrative decision of 
any official based upon or made in the course of the administration or enforcement of the provisions of 
this Chapter. 

(b) Vote required.  The concurring vote of four (4) members of the Board of AdjustmentBoard of 
Adjustment and Appeals shall be necessary to reverse any order, requirement, decision or determination 
of any such administrative official or to decide in favor of the applicant on a variance request. 

(c) Preapplication review for variance or appeal.  The applicant shall discuss the variance or appeal 
informally with staff to discuss the procedures and submittal requirements. 

(d) Submittal requirements.  The applicant shall submit the following to the Community 
Development Department: 

(1) A completed application form. 

(2) Proof of ownership of the land which is the subject of the variance or appeal. 

(3) Application fee (fee schedule available from the Community Development Department). 

(4) A site plan, when applicable, indicating how the variance relates to the affected land drawn to 
scale, including the height and setbacks of all existing and proposed structures and any other 
information requested by the Director. 

(5) An explanation in narrative form explaining the variance or appeal and how it meets the 
approval criteria in Section 16-26-30 herein. 

16-11 10/14/14 Planning Commission Meeting Packet Page 79 of 84



(e) Formal review process. 

(1) The submittal shall be reviewed for completeness and the applicant notified of any 
inadequacies.  An incomplete submittal shall not be processed. 

(2) Once the submittal is determined to be complete, staff shall submit the application to the 
appropriate referral agencies, schedule the variance or appeal before the Board of AdjustmentBoard 
of Adjustment and Appeals and notify the applicant of the date and time of the public hearing. 

(3) The applicant is responsible for posting notice on the property and notifying the abutting 
landowners in accordance with the public notice requirements in Section 16-26-60 below. 

(4) The Board of AdjustmentBoard of Adjustment and Appeals shall evaluate the application, 
referral agency comments, staff report and public testimony, and shall approve, conditionally approve, 
table for further study or deny the appeal or variance. 

(5) The concurring vote of four (4) members of the Board of AdjustmentBoard of Adjustment 
and Appeals shall be necessary for a variance.  The Board's determination shall be based on the 
evidence presented and compliance with the applicable criteria.  (Ord. 02-01 §2605; Ord. 05-13 
§2605) 

Sec. 16-26-60. Public notice requirements. 

The applicant shall be responsible for public notification.  In calculating the time period for public 
notification, the day of posting or mailing shall be counted toward the total number of days required.  The 
day of the hearing shall not be counted toward this total. 

(1) Mailed notice.  At least fifteen (15) days prior to the Board of AdjustmentBoard of 
Adjustment and Appeals hearing, the applicant shall send a written notice of said hearing by first 
class mail to all adjoining landowners and to homeowners' associations which have authority over 
property located within two hundred (200) feet of the land under consideration.  The notice shall 
include: 

a. An explanation of the variance or appeal in narrative form; 

b. A vicinity map; and 

c. A site plan (when applicable). 

At least five (5) days prior to the public hearing, the applicant shall submit to the Community 
Development Department a copy of the notice sent to the landowners, an alphabetical listing of the 
parties receiving notice and a map illustrating the location of the abutting landowners. 

(2) Posted notice.  At least fifteen (15) days prior to the Board of AdjustmentBoard of 
Adjustment and Appeals hearing, the applicant shall post a notice on the land under consideration.  
The sign posting shall consist of at least one (1) sign facing each abutting right-of-way, within ten 
(10) feet of the lot line abutting the right-of-way, visible from the right-of-way, placed on posts at 
least four (4) feet above ground level.  Each sign shall measure not less than three (3) feet by four 
(4) feet.  Letter size shall be a minimum of three (3) inches high.  The notice shall read: 

16-12 10/14/14 Planning Commission Meeting Packet Page 80 of 84



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING BEFORE THE BOARD OF ADJUSTMENTBOARD OF ADJUSTMENT AND 
APPEALS 

This land shall be considered for (a variance/ appeal) pursuant to Chapter 16 of the Lone Tree Municipal Code to 
allow for a change in _________.  For more information, call the Community Development Department, [list the 
phone number provided by the City].  The public hearing is (date), in the City Council Hearing Room, 8527 Lone 
Tree Pkwy., City of Lone Tree, CO 80124 [or other designated place, if applicable] at (time). 

Name of Proposal: _________________________ 
File Number:  _______  Hearing Date: _________ 

a. An affidavit of sign posting shall be submitted for the file in the Community 
Development Department at least five (5) days prior to the hearing.  The signs shall be 
photographed by the applicant and attached to the affidavit as follows: 

(attach photo here) 

I, (applicant/representative), attest that the above sign was posted on (date), at (location) pursuant to Chapter 16 
of the Lone Tree Municipal Code. 

         (signature)               
(applicant/representative) 

File name and number: __________________ 

Signed and sworn before me this date: ______ 

NOTARIZED BY: _____________________ 

b. The sign shall be removed by the applicant within two (2) weeks following the final 
decision of the Board of AdjustmentBoard of Adjustment and Appeals or withdrawal of the 
application. 

(3) Additional public notice may be required by the Director.  (Ord. 02-01 §2608; Ord. 05-13 
§2606) 

Sec. 16-26-70. Variance requests heard by City Council. 

The City Council may grant a variance to the zoning requirements for those items listed in Subsection 
16-26-20(a), where such request is made concurrent with a Site improvement Plan (SIP) application. 

(1) Submittal requirements.  In addition to the submittal requirements for an SIP, the applicant 
shall include a narrative explaining the need for the variance and how the request meets the approval 
criteria in Section 16-26-30 herein. 

(2) Public notice.  In addition to the notice of such variance request being sent to referral agencies 
and homeowners' associations as part of the SIP process, the Director may require additional noticing 
as provided in Section 16-26-60. 

(3) Approval criteria.  A variance or appeal may be granted by the City Council where it is 
determined that the applicant has met the approval criteria in Section 16-26-30.  (Ord. 05-13 §2607) 

16-13 10/14/14 Planning Commission Meeting Packet Page 81 of 84



Sec. 16-26-80. Post-approval action. 

Construction pursuant to approval of a variance or an appeal shall be completed within eighteen (18) 
months from the date the variance/appeal was granted, unless otherwise specified by the reviewing 
authority as provided herein.  An extension of time may be granted by the reviewing authority as 
provided herein for good cause shown, upon a written request by the applicant.  (Ord. 02-01 §2609; Ord. 
05-13 §2608) 

Sec. 16-26-90. Post-denial application. 

If denied by the Board of AdjustmentBoard of Adjustment and Appeals or City Council, a 
resubmittal of the same or substantially same variance or appeal application shall not be accepted 
within one (1) year from the date of denial by the Board or, in the event of litigation, from the date of 
the entry of the final judgment.  However, if evidence is presented to the Board of AdjustmentBoard 
of Adjustment and Appeals showing that there has been a substantial change in physical conditions or 
circumstances, the Board may reconsider the variance/appeal.  A new application and processing fee 
shall be required.  (Ord. 02-01 §2610; Ord. 05-13 §2609) 

Sec. 16-26-100. Review by Court. 

Every decision of the Board of Adjustment and Appeals related to provisions of this Chapter shall 
be subject to review by certiorari by the District Court in and for the County or any county in which 
any part of the City is located.  The appeal shall be filed no later than thirty (30) days from the final 
action taken by the Board of Adjustment.  The appeal may be taken by any person aggrieved or by an 
officer, department or board of the City.  (Ord. 97-6 §3.1) 

ARTICLE XXXVI 

Definitions 

Sec. 16-36-10. Rules of construction. 

(a) The particular controls the general. 

(b) In case of any difference of meanings or implication between the text of this Chapter and the 
captions for each section, the text shall control. 

(c) The word shall is always mandatory and not directory.  The word may is permissive. 

(d) Words used in the present tense include the future, unless the context clearly indicates the 
contrary. 

(e) Words used in the singular number include the plural, and words used in the plural number 
include the singular, unless the context clearly indicates the contrary. 

(f) A building or structure includes any part thereof.  A building or other structure includes all 
other structures of every kind, regardless of similarity to buildings. 

16-14 10/14/14 Planning Commission Meeting Packet Page 82 of 84



(g) The phrase used for includes "arranged for," "designed for," "intended for," "maintained for" 
and "occupied for."  (Ord. 05-13 §3601) 

Sec. 16-36-20. Definitions. 

As used in this Chapter, the following words shall be interpreted and defined as set forth below, in 
accordance with the provisions set forth in this Section, unless the context otherwise requires: 

Abutting means having a common border with, or separate from such a common border by, a 
right-of-way, alley or easement. 

Accessible parking means parking spaces provided for the disabled according to the 
requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA). 

Accessory equipment shelter means an enclosed structure, cabinet, shed or box generally near 
or at the base of the support structure of a telecommunication or personal wireless communication 
facility that houses batteries, electrical equipment and other related equipment. 

Accessory structure means a subordinate structure detached from but located on the same lot as 
the principal structure, the use of which is incidental and accessory to that of the principal 
structure. 

Accessory use means a use naturally and normally incidental to, subordinate to and devoted 
exclusively to the principal use. 

Adjacent means having a common border with, or separated by common areas, open space, 
roadways or alleys. 

Antenna means a system of wires, rods, reflecting discs or similar devices used for the wireless 
transmission or reception from a specific direction. 

a. Directional (or panel or rectangular) antenna means a flat surface antenna used to 
archive transmission or reception from a specific direction. 

b. Omnidirectional (or whip) antenna means a thin, self-supporting rod antenna that beams 
and receives a signal in all directions. 

c. Parabolic (or dish) antenna means a round, often concave, antenna no greater than 
twenty-four (24) inches in diameter used primarily for point-to-point transmission of radio 
signals. 

Antenna array means groups of antennas designed to send and receive wireless transmissions. 

Assisted living and congregate care means independent living developments that provide 
centralized amenities such as dining, housekeeping, transportation and organized 
social/recreational activities.  Limited medical services (such as nursing and dental) may or may 
not be provided.  The resident may contract additional medical services or personal assistance. 

16-15 10/14/14 Planning Commission Meeting Packet Page 83 of 84



Berm means a mound of earth used in landscaping for screening, definition of space, noise 
attenuation or decoration. 

Board of AdjustmentBoard of Adjustment and Appeals means the persons appointed by the City 
Council and acting pursuant to the provisions of the Charter. 

Board of Appeals means the persons appointed by the City Council and acting pursuant to the 
provisions of the Charter. 

 

16-16 10/14/14 Planning Commission Meeting Packet Page 84 of 84


	1A - 10-14-14 PC Agenda
	1B 9-9-14 PC Minutes
	MINUTES OF THE
	Lone Tree Planning Commission Meeting

	1C - Morningstar PC Staff Report
	FROM: Kelly First, Community Development Director
	Jennifer Drybread, Senior Planner
	DATE: October 8, 2014
	FOR:  October 14, 2014 Planning Commission Meeting
	C. SITE CHARACTERISTICS:
	The property was originally planned in 2008 as part of a mixed-use retail area.  Since then, for a variety of reasons, the master developer for RidgeGate has said that the retail concept in this area is not feasible. Instead, the new plan includes a s...
	F. DESCRIPTION:
	H. STAFF FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATION:
	Staff finds that the application is in conformance with the SIP requirements of the Lone Tree Zoning Code, the Subdivision Code, the Comprehensive Plan, and the RidgeGate Lincoln Commons Commercial Mixed-Use Sub-Area Plan.
	Staff notes that the Comprehensive Plan supports senior friendly housing development, including “assisted living facilities, [located] near social services, public facilities, and commercial areas to reduce feelings of isolation and to ensure access t...
	Staff recommends the Planning Commission recommend approval of the SIP to City Council, subject to:
	1. Final approval by the Public Works Department
	2. The local park dedication for the property will be paid to the City by the applicant, prior to issuance of a building permit
	END

	2 - Application
	3 - Project Narrative - Lone Tree
	4 - Master Statement of Design Intent
	5 - Parking Letter - Morningstar at Ridgegate 10.07.14
	6 - RidgeGate SIP and Elevations Submittal 10.07.014 red
	7 - Referral Responses
	8 - DRC - Morningstar 07 11 13 Pre Submittal
	9 - DRC - Morningstar 09 13 13 Schematic Design
	10 - DRC - Morningstar 02 06 14 Design Development
	11 - DRC - Morningstar 04 08 14 Design Development
	12 - DRC - Morningstar 09 10 14 Design Development Resubmittal
	13 - DRC Approval letter
	14- Zoning Code Amendments
	PC staff report
	Chapter 16 Lone Tree Supp 9_BOAA Edits




